BATAVIA CITY COUNCIL
SPECIAL CONFERENCE MEETING

City Hall - Council Board Room
One Batavia City Centre
September 13, 2021 at 7:00 PM
(PRIOR to Business Meeting)

AGENDA

I.  Call to Order

II.  Invocation — Councilmember Canale
III.  Pledge of Allegiance
IV.  Public Comment
V.  Council Response té Public Comment
VI.  Communications
a. YWCA of Genesee County SK — 10/16/21
b. Batavia Rotary Cemetery 5K — 10/30/21
c. Alzheimers Association Walk — 9/25/21
VIIL Council President Report
a. Announcement of the next City Council Conference Meeting to be held on
Monday September 27 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall Council Board Room, 2"
Floor, City Centre ‘
VIIL Presentation- Muckdogs Baseball - Robbie Nichols
IX.  Audit Presentation — Freed Maxick — Kathryn Barrett, CPA

X.  Transferring Funds From Assigned Fund Balance To Various Reserve Funds

XI.  Modified And Restated Sales Tax Allocation Agreement Between The City Of
Batavia And County Of Genesee

XII.  Highland Park Street Light

XHI.  Adjournment




City of Batavia

MEMORANDUM
To: Rachael Tabelski, City Manager
From: Heidi J. Parker, Clerk-Treasurer
Date: 9/3/21

Subject:  Event Summary
Below please find the summary for the events to be reviewed by City Council on September 13, 2021:

YWCA of Genesee County 5K — 10/16/21
Estimated costs from police is $294.00 and tents need to be weighted down.

Batavia Rotary Cemetery 5K — 10/30/21
Estimated cost from police is $98.00

Alzheimers Association Walk — 9/25/21
There are no costs from the departments.

Bureau of Clerk/Treasurer Phone: 585-345-6305
One Batavia City Centre Fax: 585-343-9221
Batavia, New York 14020 www.batavianewyork.com




City of Batavia

**NOTE — Event sponsors are responsible for any costs that may be incurred because of their event
and have been made aware of this change until further notice.

Bureau of Clerk/Treasurer Phone: 585-345-6305
One Batavia City Centre Fax: 585-343-9221
Batavia, New York 14020 www.batavianewyork.com
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Event Application #:

Event Application Fee - $25.00 (non-refundable)
(A separate permit must be issued for each item requested)

Event Sponsor _Y WCA  (yC Geﬂj‘&e CD\.LﬂH 3 ‘e,

Type of Event EJ\(‘

Date of Event CIA’OYEF Vo, DO\ = S(S(‘*JV' A\SUJ\,F

Time of Event (don't include set up time here — just actual event time) <\ \ 206 cuN

Location of Event ?13\ No r(\)f\ SA\’( ee‘%' QMA&MHH(S}}
Dnenecic. NViolente Auareness

Details of Event (be as specific as possible!) \ |

Mot Bwareness DX with Ten\no, a Fler event
and 000 Fruck s, v

Contact Information:

Primary contact: Secondary contact;

Name_Z Y V&N na GSarne Milve A

[y

Phone # "SR, A0, -\ 0 (O O - BAR-SH C
E-mail address&%cu’_ﬁi«f_@g’w_c%m&ee ML PEC(© yweaQ enNese e, (v

of 3 ' J 3

* Events will be posted on the City's website calendar. If there is a website you would like to include that people
can visit for more information or registration, if applicable, note website here:

Will there be alcohol at your event? Yes [ No /d If yes, complete the following:
Type of alcoholic beverage to be served: Liquor (O Wine QO Beer QO

Wili you be providing alcohol to your group? Yes [ No /Z'

Will you be selling alcohol to your group? Yes O No )Z Insurance certificate WILL BE required
with Liquor Legal.
Will people be allowed to bring alcohol to Yes [0 No }{
the event?
Who will be applying to the NYS Liquor Authority for the permitto sell? L\] / AL _ o

Itis the Applicant’s responsibility to police the area during the gathering to make sure all Alcohol Beverage Control
rules are followed. Also, after the event Applicant is responsible to dispose of all empty bottles and debris.

** If you are contracting with a group to sell alcohol during your avent on city property, separate insurance is required
from them with Liquor Legal in addition to your insurance. **
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EVENT INFORMATION (required):
Setupdate Set up time: . LMD M

Tear down date: C—’\O ’Ze [ m . &Q\ Tear down time: _\_&mw

PLEASE LIST ALL DATES / TIMES AND CROWD INFORMATION BELOW:

Date: \ D \ \\O Start time: %’)_)Dﬂm End time: la ) ‘ ! jQ l i
Estimated crowd size: LL—_‘)\LQLMY\ # of Vendors/Displays 5 "'\ D

WILL THE EVENT INCLUDE:

Parade: Yes O No Zl/ (MAP OF DESIRED ROUTE MUST BE ATTACHED)
Run or Walk: Yes )z( No (MAP OF DESIRED ROUTE MUST BE ATTACHED)
Music: Yes A No (SITE DRAWING OF STAGE OR DJ LOCATION ATTACHED)

Street Closure(s): Yes No (MAP OF CLOSED STREETS AND DROP LOCATION OF
BARRICADES)
(MAP OF DESIRED ROUTE MUST BE ATTACHED)

0 00O

Other: Yes (] No
Fireworks or Hazardous Materials? Yes 1 No )2/ Carnival or Amusement Rides? Yes [J No )2/

Phone #

Nama of Company Providing Abova: Company Contact/Repr

Address, Street City
Music: Live Group {1  Recorded/DJ )/ \
i Name of Company Providing Abave. lompany Contact/Representalive Phone #

251 Neah Seeed) S Bt YGELO

Address, Streel © City Zip Code

Zip Code

CITY SERVICES SUPPORT:

The City reserves the right, as part of the permitting process, to require the
City Code 66-15, D-2 applicant to pay for additional operational costs of the City associated with the
event.

FOR EVENTS IN CITY PARKS, GARBAGE PICK-UP WILL BE MADE ONLY TO GARBAGE CANS ON SITE.
ADDITIONAL GARBAGE MUST BE BAGGED AND REMOVED FROM PREMISES BY EVENT SPONSOR.

ELECTRIC:
Will electric be needed for the event? Yes )a/ No
What will you be providing electric to? \4 ) 46 ! e ,r Z ! f \'\g X 3‘ )htm
Will generators be used? Yes O No p/'see Special Events Inspection v list for compliance*

If yes, INCLUDE SITE DRAWING INDICATING PLACEMENT/LOCATION OF GENERATOR

SIZE OF GENERATOR(S) | FUEL SOURCE - GAS - (] - DIESEL - 1] - PROPANE - (]
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TENTS/CANOPIES/POP-UPS: See appendices for compliance checkliist - all tents will be inspected **

Will Tents/Canopies or other membrane structures be erected at event? Yes No QO
Will a bounce haouse or other air supported structures be erected at event? Yes (1 No O

NOTE — Appropriate anchoring is required for all tents, canopies, and pop-
up structures

Please list size(s) of Tents/Canopies or other temporary structures erected* \)
o) ond D svory /B sh de P E i

ANCHORING INTO PAVEMENT IS PROHIBITED!

If anchoring in grass, soil areas please contact the NYS Dig Safe # at: 1-800-962-7962 or 811

STREET CLOSURE(S):

ANY EVENT REQUIRING A STREET CLOSURE REQUIRES 90 DAY ADVANCE NOTIC

Will street(s) need to be closed for the event? Yes ?/No Q Reason: ‘b ! %ﬁ {r\— s mﬁ V\(S‘/\

List St'fj!{s) and Cross, Street(s) that will be affected:
N YN 'Shveel Vine & €055
Street to be closed Cross Streels
Street to be closed Cross Straets
&
Street to be closed Cross Streets
Strest to be closed Cross Streets

Will street barricades be requested from the City? Yes ﬁ No ([ HowMany? Q——

Will traffic cones be requested from the City? Yes [ No j{ How Many?
{Drop off locations of requested items must be identified on the site drawing)

BANNERS / SIGNS OR OTHER DECORATIONS ARE NOT TO BE ATTACHED
TO STREET BARRICADES. TRAFFIC CONES, LIGHT POLES, OR ANY OTHER CITY PROPERT
Are there any other city materials of personne) requested for the event? Identify below: (there may be adgiitional ¢
_cw g)ggg,emcgg :\—_(; {d,;ﬂ( é&g}_; &ﬁ)(‘ umecs 2 Mn iig [E

QS he, J-POss- —\,):\mv-\ea\.n.

POLICE
Will City Police Officers be requested for the event? Yes No (O

FINAL DETERMINATION FOR NUMBER OF POLICE OFFICERS
and UTILIZATION WILL BE AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CITY.

Page 3of 7
City of Batavia Event Application




PLEASE NOTE:

1. Be as specific as possible in the description so we have the best understanding of your event. Also, be clear
as to what you would like provided by the City. Applications should be submitted at least 30 days in
advance.

2. Fire hydrants, Cross Streets/Alleys and Store Fronts Shall Not Be Blocked by any Vehicle or Concession at
any time.

3. An Emergency Vehicle Safety Lane Must be Maintained at All times at All Locations
4. Fuel Containers Must be of an Approved type and Must be Properly Secured
5. Deep Fryers Must Be Approved. Commercial Types Require a Type “K” Portable Fire Extinguisher

6. Al Food Vendors Must Have a Type ABC Fire Extinguisher. All Fire Extinguishers Must Be Inspected Within

The Last Year. A Valid Health Department Permit Must Be Displayed.

7. No grease or substance of any kind may be discharged upon the streets, sidewalks, or into the storm drains
and/or sewers

8. City Sign Ordinances Shall Be Complied With At All Times And In All Regards
9. No paint or other markings may be placed on the street surface.

10. Any overtime and/or material costs in excess of $500, as determined by City Departments, must be paid by the
event sponsor or other party. The application fee is due at time of submission of the application and is non-
refundable.

11. Vendor/participants must also follow all inspection/temporary structure rules found in the appendices (pg 6-7)

12, If approved, a Certificate of Liability Insurance of at least $1,000,000 naming the City of Batavia as an
additional insured for at least the day(s) of the event must be submitted to the City Clerk prior to the event date.

Hold Harmless Agreement

? !!g L , the organizer/sponsor, shall indemnify, hold harmless, assume liability for and defend
the City of Batavia, its employees, officers and agents from any and all damages, costs and expenses including but
not limited to, attorney's fees, court costs, and all other sums which the City of Batavia its employees, officers and
agents may pay or become obligated to pay on account of any and every demand, claim or assertion of liability, or
any claim founded thereon, arising or alleged to have arisen out of the activities described in this special event
a p d sanctioned by the permit issued by the City of Batavia or by any act or omission of the
y (Organizer/Sponsor), its members, agents, employees, volunteers, officers, or directors
in Iatlon to activities described in this application and sanctioned by the issuance of a special event permit.

DN 2021

" Date:

“Authorized Signature, Title

oishna. barne

Name — Printed or Typed

The ryles and information contained within this application hdve beén read and will be a ed to.
“alhafoay = -
: Signature of tv

Date:

Please forward this application to: Clerk’s Office
Attention: Events Applications Department

One Batavia City Centre
Batavia, New York 14020
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SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION
DEPARTMENT APPROVAL SUMMARY

FOR OFFICIAL CITY USE ONLY

OFFICIAL USE ONLY
Department Recommendations:

Approved Denied Additional Costs Department initials
DPW (if applicable) a (M ]
Fire Dept. (if applicable) a a
Police Dept. (if applicable) [ ] (M |

if recommendation is denied, please attach a brief explanation

OFFICIAL USE ONLY

Date Roeceived Council Action: (Approved / Disapproved)

Date of Council Action: 7 [ ved (f

Event Application #:

Department: ;
List Dapartment Name Here

Department Approval

YES NO
DPW a (N |
Fire Q Qa
Police Qa a
Department Cost Estimate:

If applicable

Estimate based on: ribis tabis - type your responss here:

If Application not Approved, Provide Reason Here: riiabie abis - type your response hers:

I

Submitted By:

Name / Title Date Submittad
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Appendices

SPECIAL EVENTS INSPECTION

YES tem to verify

NO

orrective action

Extension cords plugged into approved electrical
boxes?

Do not use unless cords plugged direct

Generator in use 20 feet from any structure?

Do not use generator unless moved to safe area

KGienerator has appropriate extinguisher available

Do not use unless extinguisher present

Generator grounded?

Do not use unless grounded

Inflatable secured to ground?

Do not use unless secured

Inflatable rods covered?

Do not use unless rods are covered for safety

Propane tanks secured?

Do not use unless secured

Outside cooking has appropriate extinguisher?

Do not use unless extinguisher present

Fireworks display 75 feet from any structure?

Do not light unless in approved location

Fireworks display has proper extinguishers?

Do not light unless extinguisher is present

Does cooking under tent meet the safety standard?

Do not cook unless tent is rated for fire resistance or cooking
outside tent

Are Easy up tents properly roped, braced on
nchored to withstand elements of weather and

Do not occupy until proper securing is approved by inspector

ollapse?
E)oes Easy up tent have permanent label ID of size Tent not to be used without proper label
nd fabric?
utdoor cooking that produces sparks or grease Shall be outside of tents unless tent is fire rated and
aden vapors? extinguishers or hood present

oes the venue have a crowd of 250 people or more?

Must have crowd managers trained as approved by inspector

Page 6 of 7
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TEMPORARY STRUCTURE SETUP AND DAILY CHECKLIST (tent and membrane structures)
YES |itemto Verify NO (Corrective Action
Is structure at least 20 feet from any property lines? Do not occupy or use structure. Structure needs to be relocated a
minimum of 20 feet from any property lines.
[s structure within 20 feet of any building? Do not occupy or use structure. Structure needs to be relocated al
minimum of 20 feet from any building.
Is structure within 20 feet of another structure? Evaluate all structures within 20 feet of each other as a single structure
imeeting al] applicable requirements.
Is structure within 20 feet of parking? Restrict parking or relocate structure at least 20 feet from parking.
. . . . Do not use internal combustion engine until relocated at least 20 feet
[s structure within 20 fect of any internal combustion engines?
from structure,
|Are "No Smoking" signs posted inside and outside? Do not occupy or use structure unless no smoking signs are posted an
enforced.
Are fireworks and unapproved open flames prohibited inside Do not occupy or use structure unless fireworks and all unapproved
nd outside the structure? open flames are prohibited in the structure and within 20 feet of exterior]
of structure.
Are all points in the structure within 100 feet of an exit? Do not occupy or use structure unless sufficient nearby exits are
provided.
[Ensure "Exit" signs are posted and clearly visible. Do not occupy or use structure unless required "Exit" signs are]
provided.
Ensure "Exit" signs are illuminated. Do not use or occupy structure unless illuminated exits are provided.
Ensure that exit signs have either two separate circuits or twol Do not use or occupy structure until a minimum of two circuits or
sources of power depending on occupant load. sources of power are provided as required. Typically this is
accomplished through the use of AC Powered Exit signs with internal
[battery backup.
|Are exits open and uncovered? Do not occupy or use structure unless all required exits are functional.
Are all aisles at least 44 inches wide? Do aisles increase in Do not occupy or use structure unless proper aisle widths arg
iwidth where required? maintained.
s the Occupant Load posted appropriately? Do not occupy or use structure unless the correct occupant load i
posted appropriately.
Ensure emergency lighting is provided. Do not use or occupy structure unless emergency lighting is provided.
Is a label permanently affixed to the structure bearing the Do not use or occupy structure unless label is present.
lidentification of size and material type?
RA:10BC Fire extinguishers are provided (see information Do not use or occupy structure until sufficient, properly sized, firg
packet for minimum number required). lextinguishers are provided.
At least one 40OBC rated fire extinguisher shall be provided Do not use or operate any of these hazards unless appropriate fire]
for each kitchen, mess hall, power generator, or transformer] extinguishers are provided as described in Temporary Membrang
and at locations where flammable or combustible liquids are] Structures, Tents and Canopies document and applicable codes.
used, stored, or dispensed.
Weeds and other combustible vegetation shall be removed, Do not use or occupy the structure unless combustible vegetation has]
from within 30 feet of the structure area. been removed from the specified area.
[The floor surface inside, including the grounds adjacent to of Do not use or occupy the structure unless combustible waste i
within 30 feet outside of temporary tents, canopies, and| removed or stored in proper containers.
membrane structures, shall be kept free of combustible waste.
Such waste shall be stored in approved containers until Do not use or occupy the structure unless trash containers have been
removed from the premises. lemptied from the previous day.
Outdoor cooking that produces sparks or grease-laden vapors, Do not use cooking source under tent
Must be outside tent.
[s tent secure 20 Ibs per leg or tent stakes
Inspection performed by: Date:
Page 7 of 7
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Official Use Only:

—<Bdloag

Event Applicatlon Fee - $25.00 (non-refundable)
(A separate permit must be issued for each Htem requested)

EveMSponsor__&&f_Q\\l i~ Rp W‘CY ( [ Q_A
Type of Event 5k RACE

Date of Event __ 70/ 30/ 202) ‘ QY
Time of Event (don't include set up time here — just actual event time) 5 130 PM
Location of Event /‘/&Y\HS Te6  AVE Bp iansin ( e T ey

7
Details of Event (be as specHic as possiblel) 5 k You ‘I'l\ﬂ)v 4 L 3 CCr T4

Lol A%{Vtsff'/ Ave.

Contact Information:
Prmary contact: econdary cont

Name DDV & Forsy7h
Phone#_2/4 34713 o012 . :

E-mail add ‘
mjéo( S y~rA 143 e /muilion

* Events will be posted on the City’s website calendar. if there is a website you would like to Include that people )
can visit for more information or registration, if applicable, note website here: R /
o e Bk tom (e meTery KK

Wili there be alcohol at your event? Yes W No QO If yes, complete the following:

Type of alcoholic beverage to be served: Liquor QQ ‘Wine ([ Beer y

Will you be providing alcohol to your group? Yes & No QO

Will you be selling alcohol to your group? Yes [J No p Insurance certificate WiLL BE required
with Liquor Legal. .

Will people be allowed to bring alcohol to Yes [ No gp

the event?

Who will be applying to the NYS Liquor Authority for the permit to sell? _&% [lt S Fﬁﬁyﬂ\

it is the Applicant’s responsibliity to police the area during the gathering to make sure all Aicohol Beverage Control
rules are followed. Also, after the event Applicant is responsible to dispose of all empty bottles and dobris.

** if you are contracting with a group to sell aicohol during your event on city property, separate Insurance Is required
from them with Liquor Legal In addltion to your insurance, **

Pags 10t7
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EVENT INFORMATION (required):
setupdate: __{ 0 /3 D/ 262) Set up time: ANodn/

Toar down date; /0 / 31/ Co L_l Tear down time: 0 A m

PLEASE LIST ALL DATES / TIMES AND CROWD INFORMATION BELOW:

Date: _/ Dz : 5 O l zl Start time: 5 . 3 2 pmM End time: 7 P

Estimated crowd size: 2 00 - 300 # of Vendors/Displays Z.

WILL THE EVENT INCLUDE:

Parade: Yes 0 No (¥ (MAP OF DESIRED ROUTE MUST BE ATTACHED)

Run or Walk: Yos M No [ (MAP OF DESIRED ROUTE MUST BE ATTACHED) !

Music: Yes [0 No D (SITEDRAWING OF STAGE OR DJ LOCATION ATTACHED)

Street Closure(s): Yes \d No [Q (MAP OF CLOSED STREETS AND DROP LLOCATION OF |
BARRICADES) ;

Other: Yes [ No W (MAP OF DESIRED ROUTE MUST BE ATTACHED)

Fireworks or Hazardous Materials? Yes [ No ,2! Camival or Amusement Rides? Yes {1 No ,D
()

Taris of Company Frovkiing ABove: Compeny Conteciinprasantaive Fhone §
Address, Gheel oy Zb Code
Music: LiveGroup [} RecordedDJ [0
- ()
Narme of Company Proviiig Above: Company Comolting Pono
Aidrens, Dheet o T Code
CITY SERVICES SUPPORT:

_ The Cily reserves the right, as part of the permitting process, fo require the
City Code 86-15, D-2 applicant to pay for additional operational costs of the Cily associated with the
evant,

FOR EVENTS IN CITY PARKS, GARBAGE PICK-UP WILL BE MADE ONLY TO GARBAGE CANS ON SITE.
ADDITIONAL GARBAGE MUST BE BAGGED AND REMOVED FROM PREMISES BY EVENT SPONSOR,

ELECTRIC:
Will electric be needed for the event? Yes @ No QO
What will you be providing electric to? I ‘ éA".'.S
Will generators be used? Yes ,W No [ -see Speclal Events inspection * list for compliance*

if yes, INCLUDE SITE DRAWING INDICATING PLACEMENT/LOCATION OF GENERATOR

SIZE OF GENERATOR(S) 2 00 v FUEL SOURCE - GAS - [W- DIESEL - 0 - PROPANE - [

Page20f7
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- TENTS/CANOPIES/POP-UPS: See appand/ces for compliance checkiist - all tents will be inspected **

Will Tents/Canoples or other membrane structures be erected at event? Yes & No QO
Will a bounce house or other air supporied structures be erected at event? Yes O No W&

NOTE - Appropriate anchoring is required for all tents, canopies, and. pop-
up structures

Please list size(s) of Tents/Canopies or other temporary structures erected” 20 - ! 407‘.m 7’

ANCHORING INTO PAVEMENT IS PROHIBITED!
If anchoring in grass, soil areas please contact the NYS Dig Safe # at: 1-800-962-7862 or 811

STREET CLOSURE(S):
ANY EVENT REQUIRING A STREE I CLOSURE REQUIRES 90 DAY ADVANCE NOTICE

Wil street(s) need to be closed forthe event? Yes [ No [] Reason: ﬂva(/rj w;// 5(
v e ARES ]

List ef(s) and Cross Street(s) that will be affacted:
(jzzxtsfwbum M KFNI(IV =5 ._ED.I:’WA Sr
‘:/‘{o“i:v;if;(&:bbecmd A /l‘ ‘ Omas&?da
R:cl‘I Speetiobo cbesd l::t g ms{“ E 1l corr”
Sreel 1 bo closed Crosa Steets

Will street barricades be requested from the City?  Yes p) No [ How Many? {

Will traffic cones be requested from the City? Yes [ No (1 HowMany?:
{Drop off locations of requested items must be identified on the sie drawing)

BANNERS SIGNS OF QTHER DECORATIONS ARE NOT TO BE ATTACHED IS
TO STREET BARRICADES. TRAFFIC CONES. LIGHT POLES, OR ANY OTHER CITY PROPERTY]

Are there any other clty materials or personnel requested for the event? Identify below: (there may be additionel costs)
Folie otkuw 70 melp (lose  of6 Havvas 7¢  Aue
s help  with Swcr g7 £ 320

POLICE

Wil City Police Officers be requested for the event? Yes [ No (]

FINAL DETERMINATION FOR NUMBER OF POLICE OFFICERS
and UTILIZATION WILL BE AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CITY.

Page 3of 7
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PLEASE NOTE:

1. Be as specific as possible in the description so we have the best understanding of your event. Also, be clear
as to what you would like provided by the City. Applications should be submitted at least 30 days in
advance. )

2. Fire hydrants, Cross Streets/Alleys and Store Fronts Shall Not Be Blocked by any Vehicle or Concession at
any time.

An Emergency Vehicle Safety Lane Must be Maintained at All times at All Locations
Fuel Containers Must be of an Approved type and Must be Properly Secured
Deep Fryers Must Be Approved. Commercial Types Require a Type “K® Portable Fire Extinguisher

o o &

All Food Vendors Must Have a Type ABC Fire

Extinguisher. All Fire Extinguishers Must Be Inspected Within
The Last Year. A BN : 18t Be Displaved

LIEILy

7. No grease or substance of any kind may be discharged upon the streets, sidewalks, or into the storm drains
and/or sewers

8. Ciy Sign Ordinances Shall Be Complied With At All Times And In All Regards

8. No paint or other markings may be placed on the street surface.

10. Any overtime and/or material costs in excess of $500, as determined by City Departments; must be paid by the
event sponsor or other party. The application fee is due at time of submission of the application and is non-
refundable,

11. Vendor/participants must aiso follow all Inspeclionliemporaly structure rules found in the appendices (pg 6-7)

12. if approved, a Certificate of Liability Insurance of at least $1,000,000 naming the Cfty of Batavia aé an
additional insured for at least the day(s) of the event must be submitted to the City Clerk prior to the event date.

Hold Harmless Agreement

_Qg_ﬂ()/ lfl’ B_N“"“' , the organizer/sponsor, shall indemnify, hold harmless, assume liability for and defend
the City of Batavia, its employees, officers and agents from any and all damages, costs and expenses including but
not iimited to, attorney's fees, court costs, and all other sums which the City of Batavia its employees, officers and
agents may pay or become obligated to pay on account of any and every demand, claim or assertion of liability, or
any claim founded thereon, arising or alleged to have arisen out of the activities described in this specal event
application jr:d sanctioned by the permit issued by the City of Batavia or by any act or omission of the

PN FHeossn (Organizer/Sponsor), its members, agents, employees, volunteers, officers, or directors
In relation to activities described In this application and sanctioned by the issuance of a special event permit.

5’/3/21 RDT?»fy o‘(’ BAJAUD\_
L4 7 Date: [4 Name of Event Sponaor:
' : (e DXecrpe
Signature, Tile
Focsy 7l
S} Name—Frinfd or Typed 4
The ru? anz information cantained within this applicatijpn-havecheen.read.and wil] be adhered to.
7 L7 .,
: L] 7 . -.-—Sgnatue of Appicant
Please forward this application to: City Clerk's Office
Attention: Events Applications Depariment
One Batavia City Centre

Batavia, New York 14020
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SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION
DEPARTMENT APPROVAL SUMMARY

FOR OFFICIAL CITY USE ONLY

Department Initials

' OFFICIAL USE ONLY
Department Recornmendations: R
RS o Approved - Denied Additional Costs
DPW (if applicable) as w]
Fire Dept. (if applicabie) : a - o
Police Dept. (if applicable) - a

K mcommendaﬂon Is doﬁléd, please attach a brief explanation

OFFICIAL USE ONLY
m‘E‘FEm — ; _ Caunai ALTor: (Rgproved T DRRpproved)
m‘.ovcodnaw:.ﬁb : [
Event Application #:
Department: "
Liet Daparimont Name Here

Department Approval

YES NO
DPW Q a
Fire (| Q
Police Q a
Department Cost Estimate:

i appicabls

Eﬁtim l_)l'“d’on: Fitasle otk - tpe your re

If Application not Approved, Provide Reason Here: ruo tue~ ype you rseponss fere:

Submitted By:

‘Nemo 77000

PageS5of 7
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Appendices

SPECIAL EVENTS INSPECTION
YES [item to verify {NO Corrective action
Extension cords plugged into approved electrical] Do not use unless cords plugged direct
boxes?
Gé;;mtor in use 20 feet from any structure? Do not use generator unless moved to safe area
Generator has appropriate extinguisher available Do not use unless extinguisher present
Generator grounded? o not use unless grounded
Inflatable secured to ground? Do not use unless secured
Inflatable rods covered? Do not use unless rods are covered for safety
Propane tanks secured? Do not use unless secured
Outside cooking has appropriate extinguisher? D0 not use unless extinguisher present
Fireworks display 75 feet from any structure? Do not light unless in approved location
Fireworks display has proper extinguishers? Do not light unless extinguisher is present
Does cooking under tent meet the safety standard? Do not cook unless tent is rated for fire resistance or cooking
putside tent
Are Easy up temts properly roped, braced o Do not occupy until proper securing is approved by inspector
chored to withstand elements of weather and
llapse?
0es Easy up tent have permanent label ID of sizel Tent not to be used without proper label
d fabric?
door cooking that produces sparks or grease [Shall be outside of tents unless tent is fire rated and
aden vapors? extinguishers or hood present
Does the venue have a crowd of 250 people or more? rqut have crowd managers trained as approved by inspector
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Official Use Only:
Euatarin. Yo Ymk 10080

QOQ/ — 30 w&;w-m

Event Applicstion #:

Event Application Fee - $26.00 (non-refundable)
(A separate permit must be issued for each item requested)

Event Sponsor _Alzheimers Association - WNY Chapter
Type of Event _Walk

Date of Event _Saturday, Septemer 25, 2021

Time of Event (don’t Include set up time here ~ just actual event time) 9:00am - 1:00pm

Location of Event Dwyer Stadium, 252B State St, Batavia, NY 14020

Details of Event (be as specific as possiblel) The Walk to End Alzheimer's raises awareness and funds for programs, services and

research. The event has enfertainment, refreshments, music, raffies, and an approximately 2 mile Walk beginning and ending this year at

Dwyer stadium.

Contact Iinformation: v

Primary contact: Secondary contact:
Name _Lauren Kienosky Ji#t Horner - Executive Director
Phone # _(716) 697-0576 cell (716) 908-9444 cell

E-mail address ikienosky@alz org jhomer@alz.org

* Events will be posted on the City's website calendar. [f there is a website you would like to include that people
can visit for more information or registration, if applicable, note website here: htip/actsiz.org/GenesesWyoming

Will there be alcohol at your event? Yes O No ™ If yes, complete the following:
Type of alcoholic beverage to be served: Liguor D Wine [ Beer Q)
Will you be providing alcohol to your group? Yes O No 4

Will you be selling alcohol to your group? Yes [ No [ Insurance certificate WILL BE required
with Liquor Legal.

Will people be allowed to bring aicohol to Yes [ No ©

the event?

Who will be applying to the NYS Liquor Authority for the permit to sell? n/a

it Is the Applicant’s responsibliity to police the area during the gathering to make sure all Aicohol Beverage Control
rules are followed. Also, after the event Applicant Is responsible to dispose of all empty bottles and debris.

** if you are contracting with a group to seil alcohol during your event on city property, separate Insurance is required
from them with Liquor Legal In addition to your insurance. ** PAH D

v Event Apptcaton AUG - 5 2021

CITY OF BATAVIA
CLERK-TREASURER




EVENT INFORMATION (required):

Set up date; Friday, September 24, 2021

Set up time:_12:00pm

Tear down date: Saturday, September 25, 2021

Tear down time; 1:00pm

PLEASE LIST ALL DATES / TIMES AND CROWD INFORMATION BELOW:

Date: 09/25/2021 Start time: _ 9:00am End time: 1:00pm
Estimated crowd size: 300-400 # of Vendors/Displays 0
WILL THE EVENT INCLUDE:
Parade: Yes 3 No [ (MAP OF DESIRED ROUTE MUST BE ATTACHED)
Run or Walk: Yes W4 No [ (MAP OF DESIRED ROUTE MUST BE ATTACHED)
Music: Yes M No [0 (S/TE DRAWING OF STAGE OR DJ LOCATION ATTACHED)
Street Closure(s): Yes O No M (MAP OF CLOSED STREETS AND DROP LOCATION OF
BARRICADES)
Other: Yes O No & (MAP OF DESIRED ROUTE MUST BE ATTACHED)

Fireworks or Hazardous Materials?

Yes [J No B  Carnival or Amusement Rides?

Yes O No K4

Neme of Company Providing AbOve. Company ConlactRepresentative - )_F-n?nu

Adgdress, Street Ciy Zip Code
Music: LiveGroup [J RecordedDd ©
Biggs Sound & Enterlamment ngg 7
Name of Comp Pro g Above: Csllg(g't‘nson ( 16) 5;;4;97? 29
8 Main St Corfu 14036
Addiress, Stroel City Zip Code
CITY SERVICES SUPPORT:

The City reserves the right, as part of the permitting process, to require the
applicant to pay for additional operational costs of the City associated with the
event.

City Code 66-15, D-2

FOR EVENTS IN CITY PARKS, GARBAGE PICK-UP WILL BE MADE ONLY TO GARBAGE CANS ON SITE.
ADDITIONAL GARBAGE MUST BE BAGGED AND REMOVED FROM PREMISES BY EVENT SPONSOR.

ELECTRIC:
Will electric be needed for the event? M No O

Dwyer Stadium - as part of contract

Yes

What will you be providing electric to?

Will generators be used? Yes OJ No *see Special Events Inspection v list for compliance*

if yes, INCLUDE SITE DRAWING INDICATING PLACEMENT/LOCATION OF GENERATOR

SIZE OF GENERATOR(S) FUEL SOURCE - GAS - (] - DIESEL - (] - PROPANE - O

Page 2 of 7
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TENTSICANOPIES/POP-UPS: See appendices for compllance checklist— all tents will be Inspected **

Will Tents/Canopies or other membrane structures be erected at event? Yes K No O
Wili a bounce house or other air supported structures be erected at event? Yes [ No o

NOTE ~ Appropriate anchoring is required for alf tents, canopies, and pop-
up structures

Please list size(s) of Tents/Canopies or other temporary structures erected* st ukety - 1 - 40%40"; 2 20%40°, 1 - 20x20" 1 - 15%15°

several 10°x10".

ANCHORING INTO PAVEMENT IS PROHIBITED!
if anchoring in grass, soil areas please contact the NYS Dig Safe # at: 1-800-962-7962 or 811

STREET CLOSURE(S):
ANY EVENT REQUIRING A STREET CLOSURE REQUIRES 90 DAY ADVANCE NOTIC

Will street(s) need to be closed fortheevent? Yes [ No [ Reason:

List Street(s) and Cross Street(s) that will be affected:

Strest io be cosed Cmsas&;‘ofa
Stree! to be clased CmsaStrfe(s
) Stree! to be closed CmsaSl:clc
Stree! fo be closed Cmsasufm

Will street barricades be requested fromthe City? Yes (3 No & How Many?

Will traffic cones be requested from the City? Yes O No @ How Many?
{Drop off locations of requested ftems must be identifisd on the sie drawing)

Are there any other city materials or personnel requested for the event? Identify below: (there may be additional costs)
in the past, police, at their own discretion, have assisted participants crossing high traffic areas on £ Main St and this year possibly on Bank St. We use volunteers

10 Bsaist participants across other streets and avoid any traffic flow issues,

v

POLICE
Will City Police Officers be requested for theevent? Yes © No (O

FINAL DETERMINATION FOR NUMBER OF POLICE OFFICERS
and UTILIZATION WILL BE AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CITY.

Page 3 of 7
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PLEASE NOTE:

1.

I

10.

1.
12.

Be as specific as possible in the description so we have the best understanding of your event. Also, be clear
as to what you would like provided by the City. Applications shouid be submitted at least 30 days In
advance.

Fire hydrants, Cross Streets/Alleys and Store Fronts Shall Not locked by any Vehicle or Concession at
any time.

An Emergency Vehicle Safety Lane Must be Maintained at All times at All Locations
Fuel Containers Must be of an Approved type and Must be Properly Secured
Deep Fryers Must Be Approved. Commercial Types Require a Type “K” Portable Fire Extinguisher

All Food Vendors Must Have a Type ABC Fire Extinguisher. All Fire Extinguishers Must Be Inspected Within
The Last Year. A Valid H ent Perm t Be Displ

No grease or substance of any kind may be discharged upon the streets, sidewalks, or into the storm drains
and/or sewers

City Sign Ordinances Shall Be Complied With At All Times And In All Regards
No paint or other markings may be placed on the street surface.

Any overtime and/or material costs in excess of $500, as determined by City Departments, must be paid by the
event sponsor or other party. The application fee is due at time of submission of the application and is non-
refundabie.

Vendor/participants must also follow all inspection/temporary structure rules found in the appendices (pg 6-7)

If approved, a Certificate of Liability insurance of at least $1,000,000 naming the City of Batavia as an
additional insured for at least the day(s) of the event must be submitted to the City Clerk prior to the event date.

Hold Harmless Agreement

The Alzheimer's Association _ the organizer/sponsor, shall indemnify, hold harmiess, assume liability for and defend

the City of Batavia, its employees, officers and agents from any and all damages, costs and expenses including but
not limited to, attorney’s fees, court costs, and all other sums which the City of Batavia its employees, officers and
agents may pay or become obligated to pay on account of any and every demand, claim or assertion of liability, or
any claim founded thereon, arising or alleged to have arisen out of the activities described in this special event
application and sanctioned by the permit issued by the City of Batavia or by any act or omission of the
The Alzheimer's Association _ (Organizer/Sponsor), its members, agents, employees, volunteers, officers, or directors

in relation to activities described in this application and sanctioned by the issuance of a special event permit.

08/03/2021 Alzheimer's Association - WNY Chapter

The rules and information contained within this applicatip[pﬂfné'i/e

Date: Name of Evant Sponsor.

Auihorized Signature, Tite

Jill Horner - Executive Director
Name — Prinfed or Typed

rééa;nd will be adhered to.
/’(L —<O

)

08/03/2021 L o )
Date: T o’ Xure NWL‘
Please forward this application to: City Clerk's Office N
Attention: Events Applications Department
One Batavia City Centre
Batavia, New York 14020
Page 4 of 7
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Appendices

SPECIAL EVENTS INSPECTION

YES [litemto verify

NO

orrective action

Xtension cords plugged into approved electrical
Xxes?

Do not use unless cords plugged direct

Generator in use 20 feet from any structure?

Do not use generator unless moved to safe area

Generator has appropriate extinguisher available

Do not use unless extinguisher present

Generator grounded? not use unless grounded
flatable secured to ground? Do not use unless secured

[Inflatable rods covered? not use unless rods are covered for safety
opane tanks secured? not use unless secured

Outside cooking has appropriate extinguisher?

Do not use unless extinguisher present

ireworks display 75 feet from any structure?

Do not light unless in approved location

not light unless extinguisher is present

ireworks display has proper extinguishers?
s cooking under tent meet the safety standard?

not cook unless tent is rated for fire resistance or cooking
utside tent

Easy up tents properly roped, braced o
chored to withstand elements of weather and
flapse?

not occupy until proper securing is approved by inspector

Easy up tent have permanent label ID of sizd
fabric?

Tent not to be used without proper label

oor cooking that produces sparks or grease
aden vapors?

Shall be outside of tents unless tent is fire rated and
xtinguishers or hood present

the venue have a crowd of 250 people or more

ust have crowd managers trained as approved by inspector

Page 6 of 7
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TEMPORARY STRUCTURE SETUP AND DAILY CHECKLIST (tent and membrane structures)

YES  fitem to Verify

NO

Corrective Action

Is structure at least 20 fect from any property lines?

Do not occupy or use structure. Structure needs to be relocated
jminimum of 20 fect from any property lines.

s structure within 20 feet of any building?

not occupy or use structure. Structure needs to be relocated o
inimum of 20 feet from any building.

s structure within 20 feet of another structure?

valuate all structures within 20 feet of each other as a single structurs
eeting all applicable requirements.

s structure within 20 feet of parking?

lRestrict parking or relocate structure at least 20 feet from parking.

s structure within 20 feet of any internal combusti
gines?

not use internal combustion engine until relocated at least 20 f
om structure.

Are "No Smoking” signs posted inside and outside?

ﬁo not occupy or use structure unless no smoking signs are posted and
forced.

Are fireworks and unapproved open flames prohibited inside}
d outside the structure?

not occupy or use structure unless fireworks and all unapproved
pen flames are prohibited in the structure and within 20 feet of
xterior of structure.

Are all points in the structure within 100 feet of an exit?

not occupy or use structure unless sufficient nearby exits arel
rovided.

Ensure "Exit” signs are posted and clearly visible.

not occupy or use structure unless required “Exit" signs are
provided.

Ensure "Exit" signs are illuminated.

Do not use or oceupy structure unless ilfuminated exits are provided.

Ensure that exit signs have either two separate circuits or two
Fouroes of power depending on occupant load,

Do not use or occupy structure until a minimum of two circuits o

urces of power are provided as required. Typically this i
mplished through the use of AC Powered Exit signs with internal
ery backup.

Are exits open and uncovered?

not occupy or use structure unless all required exits are functional,

Are all aisles at least 44 inches wide? Do aisles increase i
width where required?

Do not occupy or use structure unless proper aisle widths are
aintained.

Is the Occupant Load posted appropriately?

Do not occupy or use structure unless the correct occupant load i
posted appropriately.

Ensure emergency lighting is provided.

Do not use or occupy structure unless emergency lighting is provided.

Is a label permanently affixed to the structure bearing
identification of size and material type?

Do not use or occupy structure unless label is present.

2A:10BC Fire extinguishers are provided (see informatio
packet for minimum number required).

Do not use or occupy structure until sufficient, properly sized, fird
xtinguishers are provided.

At least one 40BC rated fire extinguisher shall be provided

for each kitchen, mess hall, power generator, or transformer

d at locations where flammable or combustible liquids are
d, stored, or dispensed.

not use or operate any of these hazards unfess appropriate fire

ceds and other combustible vegetation shall be removed
m within 30 feet of the structure area.

extinguishers are provided as described in Temporary Membrane
Structures, Tents and Canopies document and applicable codes.

Do not use or occupy the structure unless combustible vegetation hnsT
been removed from the specified area.

floor surface inside, including the grounds adjacent to o
ithin 30 feet outside of temporary tents, canopies, and
embrane structures, shall be kept free of combustible]

waste.

Do not use or occupy the structure unless combustible waste isﬂ
removed or stored in proper containers.

Such waste shall be stored in approved containers until
oved from the premises.

Do not use or occupy the structure unless trash containers have been|
emptied from the previous day.

Outdoor cooking that produces sparks or grease-lade
vapors. Must be outside tent. 1

Do not use cooking source under tent

Inspection performed by:

Date:
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SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION
DEPARTMENT APPROVAL SUMMARY

FOR OFFICIAL CITY USE ONLY

OFFICIAL USE ONLY
Department Recommendations:
Approved Denied Additional Costs Department Initials
DPW (if applicable) 0 a
Fire Dept. (if applicable) a a
Police Dept. (if applicable) Q Q

# recommendation is denied, plmo attach a brief explanation

OFFICIAL USE ONLY

Date Raceived Council Action: (Approved / Digapproved)

Deats of Counch Action: A Received (¥

Event Application #:

Department:
List Department Name Here

Department Approval

YES NO
DPW a Q
Fire a aQ
Police a Q
Department Cost Estimate:

If applicstie

Estimate based O Fitiabds table - type your response hers:

if Application not Approved, Provide Reason Here: Filaie table ~ typa your responss hers:

Submitted By:

Name / Tite Date Submited

Page 50f7
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
City of Batavia, New York
Fiscal Year ended March 31, 2021

This section of City of Batavia, New York's (the City) annual financial report presents its discussion and analysis of the
City's financial performance during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021. Please read it in conjunction with the City's
financial statements, which immediately follow this section. ALL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS
OF DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED.

Financial Highlights

In the fiscal year ending March 31, 2021, the City continued to maintain a healthy and stable financial position. The
City continues to maintain a positive unassigned fund balance. Despite challenges such as a slow property tax
base growth and state mandates (i.e. the property tax cap), the City continues to diligently commit one-time surplus
funds to fund balance reserves for future capital investments.

While reviewing the attached financial statements, it is important to understand the achievements over the past
year that have helped the City improve its financial stability. These points include:

* Continued strength of assigned and unassigned fund balances in the general fund and strong cash
balances in water and sewer funds.

¢ Healthy operations in general, water and sewer funds.

» The commitment of surplus to reserve funds for one-time equipment purchases and infrastructure and
facilityimprovements.

* The continued implementation of fiscal policies such as a Fund Balance Policy, Investment Policy, revised
Purchasing Manual and monthly financial monitoring.

In the current year, there was an excess of revenues over expenditures of $3,430,475 prior to transfers to the City’s
self-funded insurance and other funds at March 31, 2021. After net transfers fo/from other funds, there was a positive
net change in fund balance.

These efforts along with continued expense monitoring and revenue improvements have assisted in maintaining
long term fiscal solvency, while building fund balance and investing in capital equipment, city facilities, and
infrastructure.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two statements that
present different views of the City:

> The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term
information about the City's overall financial status.

> The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City, reporting the
City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

> The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as public safety and transportation were
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending.
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Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the City acts solely as a
trustee or agent for the benefit of others.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more
detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains
and supports the financial statements with a comparison of the City's budget for the year. Figure A-1 shows how the

various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.

Figure A-1
Organization of City of Batavia, New York's Annual Financial Report
Management's Basic Financial Required
Discussion Statements Supplementary
And Analysis Information

Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
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Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the City's activities
they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management's
discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Figure A-2

Major Features of the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds
Statements
Scope Entire government The activities of the City | The acitivities of the City in
(except that are not proprietary | which the City charges for
Fiduciary funds) or fiduciary, such as services
public safety and
transportation
o Statementof Net | « Balance Sheet + Statement of Net
Required Position Position
financial s Statement of
statements e Statement of Revenues, ¢ Statement of Revenues,
Activities Expenditures, and Expenses and Changes
Changes in Fund in Net Position
Balances
+ Statement of Cash
Flows
Accounting Accrual accounting Modified accrual Accrual accounting and
basis and economic accounting and current | economic resources focus
and resources focus financial focus
measurement
focus
Type of asset/ | All assets and Generally assets All assets and deferred
liability deferred outflows of expected to be used up | outflows of resources and
information resources and and liabilities that come | liabilities and deferred
liabilities and due during the year or inflows of resources, both
deferred inflows of soon thereafter; financial and capital, short-
resources, both generally no capital term and long-term
financial and capital, | assets or long-term
short-term and long- | liabilities included
term
Type of All revenues and Revenues for which All revenues and expenses
inflow/out- expenses during the | cash is received during | during the year, regardless

flow information

year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid

or soon after the end of
the year; expenditures
when goods or services
have been received
and the related liability
is due and payable

of when cash is received or
paid
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Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector companies. The government-wide financial statements present the financial position of
the City from the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. They present
governmental activities and business type activities separately. These statements include all assets of the City
(including infrastructure) as well as all liabilities (including long-term debt).

The two government-wide statements report the City's net position and how they have changed. Net position - the
difference between the City's assets and liabilities - is one way to measure the City's financial health or financial
position.

» Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position are an indicator of whether its financial position is
improving or deteriorating, respectively.

> To assess the City's overall health, one needs to consider additional non-financial factors such as changes in
the City's property tax base and the condition of the City’s infrastructure and other facilities.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City’s activities are separated as follows:

Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported in this category, including the general
government, police, fire, public safety, health, transportation, economic assistance, culture and recreation, home and
community services, and refuse and recycling. Property and sales taxes, user fees, interest income, franchise fees,
and state and federal grants finance these activities.

Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to cover all or most of the cost of certain services it
provides. The City's water and sewer activities are reported in this category. !

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's funds, focusing on its most significant
or "major” funds - not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law. However, the
City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting
legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants or other money.

The City has three kinds of funds:

> Governmental Funds: Most of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds, which generally
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements
provide a detailed short-term view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, additional information provided
with the governmental funds statements explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

» Proprietary Funds: These funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges
customers (both external and internal). These funds use accrual accounting, which is the same method used
by the private sector. The City of Batavia has two enterprise funds. The City's enterprise funds are the Water
and Sewer Funds. Enterprise funds provide the same type of information as shown in the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The enterprise fund financial statements provide separate
information for each of the enterprise funds, both of which are considered to be major funds of the City.

> Fiduciary Funds: The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as deposits. The
City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended
purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. The City excludes these activities from the government-
wide financial statements because it cannot use these assets to finance its operations.
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Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole

In recent years the City has focused its efforts on proactive financial management and strategic planning emphasizing
the City's financial health, with specific measurable resuits reviewed every month by City Council. Through these
efforts and multi-year financial planning, the City has committed to and prepared for long-term financial stability and
investments. )

As a whole, the City remains in a good position to continue to operate and provide services to residents During the
20/21 fiscal year the City met the daunting chailenging of COVID-19 and continued to provide emergency services for
the citizens of Batavia. Each department dealt with mid-year budget constraints and revenue losses. Overall, as
eveidenced by the financial statements, the City did a good job proactively responding and managing through the
COVID-19 pandemic.

What follows is an overview and analysis of the financial statements presented in later sections of this report. This is
intended to provide stakeholders with the background information necessary to make informed decisions about the
City's financial status.

Statement of Net Position (Page 21) provides a global look at City finances. Net position deducts City liabilities and
deferred inflows from its total assets abd deferred outflows. The net position of the City's governmental activities
decreased $1.7 million primarily due to and the net increase in the City’s pension liability and related deferred inflows
and outflows; however, this is not unusual and is a direct result of the actuarialvaluation of the State’s pension system.
This valuation is significantly impacted by the financial market at the time of the valuaiton {March 31, 2020). Based on
information released for March 31, 2021 the valuation shows a significant decrease in this net liabilty as of March 31,
2021. The maeasurement date of the actuarial valuation of the State’s pension system was March 31, 2020 and was
significantly impacted by the state of the finacial market at that time. The acuarial valuation of the pension system as
of March 31, 2021 The City's business-type activities showed an overall increase in net position due to net income
from operations.

On a global scale, the City's general governmental operations accounts are performing well, with revenues stabilized
and controlled expenses. This trend must continue in order for the City to not only maintain strong unrestricted fund
balances, but also for the City to grow critical equipment, capital, and revenue stabilization reserves. These reserves
will reduce reliance on debt for future investments in facilities and equipment and will help the City avoid large tax
increases.

Staff will continue to focus on conservative and practical revenue forecasting and cost management efforts to
maintain fiscal health.
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Condensed Statement of Net Position
(in thousands of dollars)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Increase Increase

2021 2020 _(Decrease) 2021 2020 (Decrease)

Current and other assets $13322 § 13709 $ (387) $21054 $ 20391 $ 663
Capital assets, net 25,346 25,371 (25) 27,024 27,315 (291)

Total assets 38,668 39,080 (412) . 48,078 47,706 372

Deferred outflows of resources 8,954 3,858 5,096 1,066 410 656
Long-term liabilities 3,095 14,799 (11,704) 718 5,528 (4,810)
Other liabilities 22,464 3,578 18,886 8,508 3,279 5,229

Total liabilities 25,559 18,377 7,182 9,226 8,807 419
Deferred inflow of resources 999 1,766 (767) 147 192 (45)
Net investment in capital assets 22,564 22,398 166 20,635 21,137 (502)
Restricted 5,344 6,486 (1,142) 7,809 6,955 854

Unrestricted (deficit) (6,844) (6,089) (755) 11,328 11,025 303

Total net position $21064 $ 22795 § (1,731) $39772 $ 39117 § 655
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Program Revenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General Revenues:
Property taxes, special assessments
and property tax items
Non-property taxes
Interest earnings
State and federal sources
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Program Expenses:
General government
Police
Fire
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic assistance
Culture and recreation
Home and community service
Refuse and recycling
Interest on debt

Total expenses

Excess of revenues
over expenses

Transfers
Change in net position

Net position-beginning

Changes in Net Position from Operating Results
(in thousands of dollars)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Increase Increase
2021 2020  (Decrease) 2021 2020 (Decrease)
$ 431 $ 500 $ 69) $ 6354 §$ 6,067 $§ 287
410 482 (72) 2,269 2,787 (518)
143 995 (852) - - -
5,994 5,520 474 - - -
7,035 7,327 (292) - - -
100 158 (58) 60 176 (116)
2,370 132 2,238 - - -
596 3,318 (2,722) - - -
17,079 18,432 (1,353) 8,683 9,030 (347)
2,776 2,750 26 - - -
4,998 5,354 (356) - - -
4,812 5,242 (430) - - -
1,985 953 1,032 - - -
27 25 2 - - -
3,309 3,440 (131) - - -
276 252 24 - - -
204 1,123 (919) - - -
378 383 (5) 7,898 7,533 365
89 85 4 - - -
87 100 (13) - - -
18,941 19,707 (766) 7,898 7,533 365
(1,862) (1,275) (587) 785 1,497 (712)
131 717 {586) (131) (717) 586
(1,731) (558) (1,173) 654 780 (126)
22,795 23,271 (4786) 39,117 38,337 780
$ 21,064 $22713 § (1,649) $39771 $ 39117 $ 654

Net position-ending
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Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

The fiscal year ending March 31, 2021 concluded with an unassigned fund balance of $2,527,617 after restrictions
and assignments for encumbrance, reserves and other fund balance commitments.

> Statement of Revenues, Expendtirues and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Page 26)
show revenue sources and revenue stream performance.lt also includes expenditures by function and fund
balance. For general government operations revenues increased $284,039 over prior year. Increases in real
property tax and tax items occurred; however, they were offset by a reduciton in sales tax and other revenue
sources such as Departmental Income.

» Overall expenditures went down $1,139,601. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, all departments across the
City saw decreased expenditures through reduciton in purchasing and hiring freezes. Also on Page 26 is the
Special Revenue Fund, Self Insurance. This fund includes the City’s Health Insurance Fund and Workers’
Compensation Fund. Those funds saw less revenue due to a reduction in stop loss payments and a
significant increase in expenses due to several high-value claims against the Health Insurance Fund. The
City will continue to monitor these two funds carefully in the coming years.

> In fiscal year 19/20, City Council updated the fund balance policy with a goal of ensuring the City keeps
unassigned fund balance at 15% to 25% of expenses. On March 31, 2021, the City had a general fund
unassigned fund balance of $2,527,617, or 15% of fiscal year 21/22 budgeted expenses.

> The Water and Sewer funds, Enterprise Funds, generate revenue through charges for service. In the current
year, the Sewer Fund increased revenue while the Water Fund saw a decrease because the prior year a
CDBG grant was received for a Water Fund Project. Both the Sewer and Water Fund remain in a very
healthy position.

In summary, the financial statements point to a healthy condition of the City’s finances and unrestricted fund balance.
Many agencies, including bond rating groups and the New York State Comptroller, utilize unrestricted fund balances
as an indicator of fiscal health.

General Fund

As of March 31, 2021, assets in the general fund increased $818,965. Please note cash and cash equivalents are not
reflected in the statements as they were invested in C.D.’s and reflected as such at March 31, 2021.

For the year ended March 31, 2021, revenues for the General Fund increased compared to last year by $284,039.
The increase in revenue can be attributed to an increase in property tax and tax item revenue. In fiscal year 20/21,
the City exceeded the 2% tax cap and raised taxes by 7% due to state aid, Video Terminal Lottery (VLT), aid being
threatened in the Governor's budget. The tax rate increased from $8.93 to $9.59 per assessed $1,000. Other
revenues remained relatively stable after NYS released all funding to municipalities that was held back during the
year. Sales tax and other taxes were down $292,832 (4%) due to sales tax being lower as a result of the pandemic
Departmental income was down $154,584, also as a result of the pandemic. ‘

It's important to note, for the reader, that the 2021 financial statements AIM aid revenue was moved to a State Source
revenue from a Miscellaneous Local Source revenue.

Total expenditures were $1,139,601 less in fiscal year 20/21 than in the prior year. Significant reductions in spending
on services and equipment, as well as keeping open positions frozen during the year helped to keep spending down.
The City proactively implemented a modified spending plan early into the COVID-19 pandemic, and it resulted in
expenses that remained in line with revenues.
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Self Insurance Fund

This year’s Self Insurance Fund balance increased $54,948 compared to fiscal year 19/20. The City created a health
insurance fund in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2020 to account for all health care costs. All transfers from
general, water and sewer are income to that fund and all health claims are expensed out of that fund. For financial
presentation purposes, the health insurance fund and the workers comp fund are combined into one fund titled the
Self Insurance Fund.

Capital Projects

The Mall Roof Phase I construction project was complete in fiscal year 20/21. This $785,545 project was completed
using facility reserve funds and in 2022 the City will complete Phase Il finishing the entire roof of the structure. In
fiscal year 22/23 the City will utilize a $1 million Downtown Revitalization Initiative {DRI) grant to continue to enhance
the City Centre with the reconstruction of the entryway'’s, flooring improvements, and paint to interior walls. The City
also purchased a new vaccon jetter in fiscal year 20/21 financed by $378,897 of general obligation bonds .

The City completed the construction of the Franklin Street Sanitary Sewer Project for $366,849 in fiscal year 20/21. In
addition, the City utilized Consolidated Highway Improvement program (CHIPs) funding of $172,617 to complete
Roosevelt Ave. and North Spruce St., as well as reserves for sidewalk improvements.

The City invested in new vehicles this year including a one-ton dump truck for the sewer department. City buildings
saw an investment in technology with the completion of the dark fiber connection project that linked all City facilities to
high-speed internet and replaced antiquated radio technology. The Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software
and IT Capital Projects continued through fiscal year 20/21. The City's financial management software and payroll
went live in fiscal year 20/21, as well as the replacement of multiple old servers, and new desktops with upgrades to
Windows 10. The ERP software implementation is anticipate to last through fiscal year 23/24 with all components
being implemented.

Water Fund

The Water Fund, including depreciation, had a current year increase in net position of $113,255 and continues to
remain in a healthy net position. The water agreements with the County of Genesee continue to allow for investment
in the City's water plant and we enjoy a collaborative relationship with the County.

Sewer Fund

The Sewer Fund, including depreciation, experienced a decrease in net position of $199,347 because of an increase
in liabilities related to a net increase in net pension liabity, deferred outflows and deferred inflows.

11
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General Fund
Self Insurance
Sewer Fund
Water Fund

General Fund

Capital Projects Funds
Self Insurance

Sewer Fund

Water Fund

(in thousands of dollars)

Year Ended March 31, 2021

Revenues, Expenditures/Expenses and Changes in Fund
Balance/Net Assets - Governmental and Business-Type Activities Major Funds

{

Expenditures/ Fund Balance/

Revenues Expenses Net Assets
$ 17,239 $ 17,096 $ 8,037
3,918 3,863 1,090
3,265 3,465 27,042
5,200 5,087 11,818

Year Ended March 31, 2020
Restated

Expenditures/ Fund Balance/

Revenues Expenses Net Assets
$ 16,747 $ 17,529 $ 7,894
1,617 1,522 153
3,942 4,258 1,035
3,190 3,331 27,242
5,628 4,840 11,705

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses include other financing sources or uses.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Amendments to the budget occur throughout the year for a variety of reasons. Possible factors include
encumbrances from the prior year, grants or other forms of financial aid received during the year, appropriations of
fund balances needed to offset unanticipated and unavoidable expenditures, and transfers of appropriations among
object classes within department budgets to address particular requirements not anticipated in the original budget.
The City Council approves and authorizes the annual budget at the level of object class totals within each department.
The City Manager has the authority to transfer appropriations among line items within a department. All transfers
between departments and funds must be approved by City Council. The encumbrances on prior year purchase
orders are added to the budget as part of the annual financial closing process. All other budget amendments must be
authorized by formal resolution of the City Council.

As previously mentioned, the City continues to take a conservative approach when preparing the budget. Revenues
the City does not receive on a consistent basis are not included in future budgets. The City continues to make
funding reserves a priority. These moves enable the City to maintain a healthy position. The City remains cognizant
that certain reoccurring revenues, including state aid, are vulnerable.

The City’s prudent revenue budgeting and expense monitoring has resulted in General Fund surpluses needed to
eliminate prior fund balance deficits, grow reserve balances and maintain the unassigned fund- balance. The City
uses one-time revenues/surpluses to offset capital project expenses, build fund balance and reserves, purchase
equipment and improve infrastructure. The City remains cautiously optimistic as major revenue sources such as
sales tax and State aid remain somewhat stable, however the recovery of the economy from the COVID-19 Pandemic
is a large factor that will affect the City’s revenue sources. Expenses such as retirement contributions and healthcare
rates have been volatile, and will continue to be unperdictable until the full effects of COVID-19 are finsihed. In fiscal
year 20/21 the City is in a good position to increase the percentage of unassigned fund balance, via the Fund Balance
Policy, to 15% of current year General Fund expenses and assign $711,00 in fund balance for future expenses
outlined in the City’s approved Capital Plan.

13
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Capital Assets

For the year ended March 31, 2021 the City will assign $711,000 in fund balance to capital reserves while still
maintaining a 15% of unassigned fund balance. Reserve accounts that will be funded include the health care reserve,
police equipment reserve, DPW reserve, facilities reserve, compensated absence reserve, and the parking lot
reserve. Other reserve accounts will be funded in the fiscal year 22/23 budget planning and in line with the City's

Capital Improvement Plans and level debt practices.

Capital Assets Net of Depreciation
(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental Business -Type
Activities Activities
2021 2020 2021 2020
Land $ 1,135 $§ 1,135 $ 42 3 42
Construction work in progress 4,464 4,850 397 2,462
Buildings 5,500 5,760 11,371 11,676
Machinery & equipment 3,200 3,347 1,133 835
Infrastructure 11,047 10,279 14,081 12,300
Total $ 25346 $ 25,371 $ 27,024 $27,315
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Long-Term Obligations

The City received a bond rating of “A2" from Moody's Investors Service in May 2010. At that time Moody's
recalibrated the scale for municipalities to bring their ratings in line with and more comparable to private organizations.
Previously the City's bond rating was “Baa2”. In June 2011, Moody's affirmed the City's “A2" bond rating and
assigned the City a “positive outlook”. Moody’s assignment of the positive outlook acknowledged a modest financial
position by specifically identifying City management's ability to restore financial health, establish a Retirement, Health
Insurance and Employee Benefits Reserves and negotiated manageable settlements with three of its unions, which
included wage freezes and healthcare concessions. In July 2012 Moody's Investors Service upgraded the City’s bond
rating from “A2” to “A1", and has maintained that bond rating. The upgrade reflected the City’s improved financial
position marked by five consecutive years of operating surpluses as well as the City’s practice of conservative
budgeting of both revenues and expenditures. The rating also factors in the City's moderately sized tax base, below
average wealth levels and average direct debt level.

More detailed information on the City’s capital assets and long-term obligations activity is provided in the Notes to the
Financial Statements under 3.C and 3.1, respectively.

Outstanding Long-Term Obligations
(in thousands of dollars)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
2021 2020 2021 2020
General obligation debt backed by the City $ 2653 $ 2,658 $ 6392 $ 4,403
Installment purchase debt 136 245 27 55
Due to other governments - Landfill 246 257 - -
Compensated absences 1,948 2,013 282 266
Total OPEB liability 7,036 6,238 390 311
Net pension liability 10,445 3,388 1,417 403
Total $ 22464 $ 14,799 $§ 8508 $ 5,528
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Factors Bearing on the City’s Future

Following is a description of both short and long-term factors the City will be forced to deal with in the future:

» General Fund Revenue — An increase in revenues in the General Fund was realized in fiscal year 20/21
related to a property tax increase, however the General Fund Revenue growth has historically been relatively
flat or with minor increases. The General Fund generally shows little to no growth year over year and the City
faces a higher risk of deferring capital expenditures, cutting services and increasing taxes. A potential buffer
against a return to low revenue growth is the City’s efforts to broaden its property tax and sales tax base with
major Downtown Revitalization (DRI) initiatives, local business expansion, and residential housing
revitalization.

> Sales Tax & Water Agreements — In 2020 the City and County entered into a 40-year sales tax revenue
sharing agreement. The agreement formalized the percentage share of County sales tax to be distributed to
the City at 16%, and not less than 14% based on a growth formula contained in the agreement. While the
sales tax formula allows for the City to benefit from 16% of total collected sales tax from the County the
growth is restricted/capped to only 2% growth of the previous year. Once the City, however reaches 14%
share of the total County sales tax the capped limit will be removed and the City can grow in sales tax
distribution with the County. In conjunction with the 40 year sales tax agreement the City to entered into a 40-
year water services and facilities agreement with County. The sales tax agreement was passed by the State
legislature and signed into law by the Governor.

» Property Tax Cap — The City continues to be proactive in our response to various NYS budget changes and
cuts that affect the City. It is important that the City anticipate these well in advance and remain flexible in our
ability to respond during the budget process. However, the adoption of the property tax cap has significantly
hampered the City’s ability to levy the necessary funds to support services. In addition, the tax cap is not a
tax cap of 2%, it is rather a cap of 2% or inflation, whichever is lowest. The City continues to support changes
to state legislation that changes or abolishes the tax cap to increase our ability to pay for government services
that residents desire.

> Reserve funding — Funding reserves now for future equipment, infrastructure and facility improvements has
been and will continue to be critical in avoiding larger tax burdens in future years. In the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2021, the City utilized just over $1 million of reserve funding to purchase needed equipment and
offset liabilities as they came due. Planning for these improvements/liabilities is a major priority in the City’s
plan. Updating capital improvement plans and designated revenue streams to fund these plans are essential
to maintaining a safe financial position for the City.

» Facility Reserve ~ The City has developed 5-year capital plans for Dwyer Stadium and Falletti Ice Arena. The
City's Strategic Plan has also outlined a key objective for developing a capital facilities improvement plan for
each City facility. A capital plan for the Bureau of Maintenance, Fire Station, and City Centre (mall) roof has
been completed and has identified approximately $1,900,000 of needed improvements, with the mall roof
repairs wrapping up this year. In preparation of needed upcoming facility improvements, additional reserve
funding will provide the City with greater financial capacity to handle future improvements for each facility.
Continuing to build this reserve will also allow the City to avoid additional debt service or the temptation to
procrastinate or put off needed investments.

» Police Station — The City is preparing to issue a general obligation bond to move towards construction of a
new police station to be located on the City Center campus. The current Police Department and
Headquarters, constructed in 1855 as a private residence and is out of date and inefficiently suited for a
modern-day Police Department to properly serve the community. The current facility does not adhere to the
American Disabilities Act and requires significant capital costs for ongoing infrastructure maintenance and
upkeep. A new Police Department and Headquarters on the Alva/Bank Street parking lot would be a capital
investment of approximately $10.8 million. The new Police Department and Headquarters would be financed
by the City of Batavia through a 30-year public improvement serial bond. The goal is to avoid any increases
in city property taxes related to construction of the facility. '
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» Administrative Reserve — In March 2015 the City Council created the Administrative Service Equipment and
Software Reserve to assist with upgrading and meeting the City’s equipment, information technology and
records management needs. This includes replacing antiquated computer hardware and software utilized by
the City, some more than 30 years old and operating on a DOS platform. The City has conducted a review of
hardware and software needs, approved the purchase, installation, and development of substantial upgrade.
These include network and desktop hardware, as well as all financial software including tax collection, utility
billing, payroll, accounts payable, accounts receivable and general ledger, code enforcement, planning and
assessment software. Considering these upgrades are similar to capital purchases, the Cty is currently using
reserve funds will allow these improvements to take place without impacting the City’s operating budget. Due
to the cost of this project, hardware and software upgrades is being paid for with a combination of reserve
funds and general obligation bonds.

> NYS Retirement Costs — Since fiscal year 09/10, annual fluctuations in actual retirement payments have
ranged from single digit decreases to double digit increases. Because the State’s projected retirement
contributions in past years have not been consistent with actual retirement payments, it is prudent to assume
retirement costs will increase in future years until consistent and reliable retirement payments are restored.

> Healthcare Costs — On average, for the past five years the City's healthcare costs have increased
approximately 8-10% per year. On an annual basis the City analyzes the option of transitioning from a self-
insured plan to an experienced-based plan, however the City's ability to maintain manageable annual
increases in healthcare costs while maintaining a healthcare reserve balance makes it financially feasible to
remain self-insured at this time.

» Retiree Healthcare Costs — Retiree healthcare will continue to increase in the future. The total
postemployment health insurance cost to the City for 36 retirees was $434,252 for the year ending March 31,
2021 While this is a slight decrease when compared to the prior year, retiree healthcare expenses are a large
portion of the General Fund expenses, are unpredictable and can be extremely volatile due to one single
illness. The City’s actuarial liability for post-employment benefits, as of March 31, 2021 is $7,426,633 (per
page 48 in the financial statements), all of which is unfunded. Aggressive labor negotiations to reduce future
retiree costs will be essential for maintaining a long term decrease of this liability.

»  Union Contracts — Three contracts are current, with CSEA expried March 31, 2021. The City's negotiations
will be focused on manageable benefit packages that will not significantly impact future property tax levels.
Strong but fair negotiations will take place to ensure that future benefit packages are reasonable for City
employees and affordable for City taxpayers.

> Taxable Assessed Value — The City has realized an average growth of 2.0% in its property tax base annually.
With the adoption of the property tax cap without relief from State mandated expenses, the City’s ability to
levy the necessary funds to support services is significantly hampered. Considering taxable assessed value
is the City's most stable source of revenue, the City needs to continue improving the City's property tax base,
particularly the non-residential tax base. This makes future commercial and industrial redevelopment a major
priority for the foreseeable future; specifically, Brownfield Redevelopment, throughout the City’s Central
Corridor.

A balanced approach to the City budget needs to include strong initiatives that contain costs, but also a strategic
direction that will improve quality of life. Growth in tax base and resident income are the lifeblood to supporting
municipal services, as well as improved quality of life for City residents.

Over the past several years the City has experienced decreases in State aid as well as increases in state retirement
costs and retiree healthcare costs. In addition, the imposition of the Property Tax Cap further limits the City’s ability to
combat increasing State mandated costs as the cap imposes a ceiling on the City’s ability to levy property taxes. The
City of Batavia leadership set a goal to achieve $100 million in public-private investment by 2022, piacing emphasis
on the central business corridor.
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The City's financial improvement over the past several years has been the result of proactive approaches to
budgeting and operations for the City. It is critically important that the City continue to plan for the future, most
specifically with regards to funding reserves, maintaining and funding capital and equipment replacement plans, and
maintaining lower cost, high quality services to residents. In addition, resources need to be focused on encouraging
tax base growth through economic development efforts promoting land use redevelopment and job growth within the

City. ,

Contacting the City's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the City's citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with
a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City Manager's Office, City of
Batavia, Batavia, New York.
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Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 678,448 §$ 9,701,043 $ 10,379,491
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 261,236 2,922,441 3,183,677
Certificates of deposit 4,083,169 - 4,083,169
Certificates of deposit - restricted 5,012,602 4,916,520 9,929,122
Property taxes receivable, net 2,130,446 - 2,130,446
Receivables, net 142,783 1,903,865 2,046,648
Loans receivable, net 224,164 - 224,164
Internal balances (1,047,211) 1,047,211 -
State and federal receivables 141,479 34,110 175,589
Due from other governments 1,694,647 529,099 2,223,746
Capital assets not being depreciated 5,599,045 438,935 6,037,980
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 19,746,834 26,584,653 46,331,487
Total assets 38,667,642 48,077,877 86,745,519
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension outflows 7,885,675 1,050,764 8,936,439
Deferred OPEB outflows 1,068,025 15,127 1,083,152
Total deferred outflows of resources 8,953,700 1,065,891 10,019,591
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 422,732 649,316 1,072,048
Accrued liabilities 669,036 - 669,036
Accrued interest payable 33,7117 68,583 102,300
Due to other governments 478,117 - 478,117
Other liabilities 53,086 - 53,086
Unearned revenues 1,438,567 - 1,438,567
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due and payable within one year 600,615 524,764 1,125,379
Due and payable after one year 21,863,046 7,983,067 29,846,113
Total liabilities 25,558,916 9,225,730 34,784,646
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension inflows 998,856 73,973 1,072,829
Deferred OPEB inflows - 72,637 72,637
Total deferred inflows of resources 998,856 146,610 1,145,466
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capital assets 22,563,763 20,634,521 43,198,284
Restricted for:
Retirement contribution 334,253 - 334,253
Employee benefit accrued liability 150,651 - 150,651
Insurance 369,002 - 369,002
Capital projects 3,074,114 7,809,291 10,883,405
Self insurance 590,580 - 590,580
Other 309,864 - 309,864
Repairs 36,340 - 36,340
Small cities 67,079 - 67,079
Special grant 411,808 - 411,808
Unrestricted (deficit) (6,843,884) 11,327,616 4,483,732
Total net position $ 21,063,570 $ 39,771,428 $ 60,834,998

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK

DRAFT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

REVENUES

Real property taxes
Real property tax items
Sales and other taxes
Departmental income
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Miscellaneous local sources
State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government

Police

Fire

Public safety

Health

Transportation

Economic assistance

Culture and recreation

Home and community services

Refuse and recycling

Employee health benefits
Capital outlay:

General government

Transportation

Culture and recreation
Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficit) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund transfers in
Interfund transfers out
Serial bond proceeds
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Special

Revenue Fund Nonmajor Total
Self Governmental Governmental

General Insurance Funds Funds
5,840,041 $ - 9 - % 5,840,041
261,480 - - 261,480
7,034,061 - - 7,034,061
156,125 - 166,125
87,955 7,933 3,713 99,601
147,757 - - 147,757
52,020 - - 52,020
100,030 354,679 - 454,709
194,579 6,426 12,564 213,569
2,765,756 - 83,878 2,849,634
33,525 - 59,600 93,125
16,673,329 369,038 159,755 17,202,122
1,817,652 97,486 - 1,915,138
3,814,281 - - 3,814,281
3,672,736 - - 3,672,736
315,836 - - 315,836
18,648 - - 18,648
1,690,221 - - 1,690,221
261,656 - 13,971 275,627
724,096 - - 724,096
248,573 - 15,863 264,436
88,888 - - 88,888
- 3,463,130 - 3,463,130
- - 303,479 303,479
- - 342,928 342,928
- - 39,023 39,023
491,923 - - 491,923
98,344 - - 98,344
13,242,854 3,560,616 715,264 17,518,734
3,430,475 (3,191,578) (555,509) (316,612)
566,518 3,549,333 210,459 4,326,310
(3,853,332) (302,807) (38,711) (4,194,850)
- - 380,600 380,600
(3,286,814) 3,246,526 552,348 512,060
143,661 54,948 (3,161) 195,448
7,893,502 1,034,605 . 647,205 9,575,312
8,037,163 $ 1,089,553 $ 644,044 § 9,770,760

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

DRAFT

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 26)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (page 23) are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the Statement of Activities,
the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays ($2,554,617), excluding construction in progress
placed in service ($970,599), exceeded depreciation ($1,593,317) in the current period.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trades)
is to decrease net position.

Revenues that are not available to pay current obligations are not reported in the fund financial
statement, but they are presented as revenues in the Statement of Activities.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Accrued interest on long-term debt $ 7,877
Changes in compensated absences 65,120
Changes in pension liabilities and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (62,710)

Changes in OPEB liabilities and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (1,930,942)

Bond and other debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmentat funds, but
issuing debt increased long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of
bond and other debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Issuance of serial bonds $ (380,600)
Principal paid on bonds 383,000
Premium amortization 3,497
Principal paid on installment purchase debt 108,923
Change in due to other governments 11,710

Change in net position of governmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements.
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(9,299)
(16,000)

(107,402)

(1,920,655)
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CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — ENTERPRISE FUNDS

MARCH 31, 2021

DRAFT

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Certificates of deposit - restricted
Receivables
Due from other funds
State and federal receivables
Due from other governments
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pension outfiows
Deferred OPEB outflows
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to other funds
Compensated absences
Instaliment purchase debt
Serial bond payables and bond premium
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Total OPEB liability
Serial bond payables and bond premium
Net pension liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension inflows
Deferred OPEB inflows
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net position

$

Nonmajor
Enterprise Total
Fund Enterprise

Sewer Water City Centre Funds
6,673,663 § 2,880,250 $ 147,130 9,701,043
1,777,885 1,144,556 - 2,922,441
2,809,440 2,107,080 - 4,916,520
775,498 1,122,303 6,064 1,903,865
- 1,117,015 1,395 1,118,410
- 34,110 - 34,110
- 529,099 - 529,099
12,036,486 8,934,413 154,589 21,125,488
199,778 234,919 4,238 438,935
19,040,208 6,778,638 765,907 26,584,653
19,239,986 7,013,457 770,145 27,023,588
31,276,472 15,947,870 924,734 48,149,076
431,083 619,681 - 1,050,764
7,299 7,828 - 15,127
438,382 627,509 - 1,065,891
71,928 570,931 6,457 649,316
39,654 28,929 - 68,583
30,790 37,041 3,368 71,199
8,566 19,946 317 28,829
7,973 19,206 - 27,179
291,887 176,869 - 468,756
450,798 852,922 10,142 1,313,862
77,080 172,117 3,725 252,922
175,624 214,805 - 390,429
3,308,251 2,614,551 - 5,922,802
581,298 835,616 - 1,416,914
4,142,253 3,837,089 3,725 7,983,067
4,593,051 4,690,011 13,867 9,296,929
30,348 43,625 - 73,973
49,162 23,475 - 72,637
79,510 67,100 - 146,610
15,657,927 4,206,449 770,145 20,634,521
4,561,273 3,248,018 - 7,809,291
6,823,093 4,363,801 140,722 11,327,616
27,042,293 $ 11,818,268 $ 910,867 39,771,428

26
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DRAFT
CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION — ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Nonmajor
Enterprise Total
Fund Enterprise
Sewer Water City Centre Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 3,179,242 $ 2959455 $ 215,936 $ 6,354,633
County water agreement charges - 1,420,069 - 1,420,069
Rental of real property - 550,000 - 550,000
Other operating revenue 51,555 211,216 1,762 264,533
State sources - 34,110 - 34,110
Total operating revenues 3,230,797 5,174,850 217,698 8,623,345
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 995,525 1,359,212 80,617 2,435,354
Contractual expense 585,125 2,917,890 49,577 3,552,592
Depreciation 1,523,998 231,995 19,639 1,775,632
Total operating expenses 3,104,648 4,509,097 149,833 7,763,578
Operating income 126,149 665,753 67,865 859,767
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 34,836 25,400 44 60,280
Interest expense (87,504) (46,476) - (133,980)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (52,668) (21,076) 44 (73,700)
Income before operating subsidy to
governmental funds 73,481 644,677 67,909 786,067
Transfers in - - 705,263 705,263
Transfers out (272,828) (5631,422) (32,473) (836,723)
Change in net position (199,347) 113,255 740,699 654,607
Net position - beginning 27,241,640 11,705,013 170,168 39,116,821
Net position - ending $ 27,042,293 $ 11,818,268 $ 910,867 $ 39,771,428

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

DRAFT

Nonmajor
Enterprise Total
Fund Enterprise
Sewer Water City Centre Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 3,379,508 $ 2,953,113 $ 212,557 $ 6,545,178
Cash payments for contractual expenses 612,385 (3,986,271) {271,036) (3,644,922)
Cash payments to employees for services (835,721) (1,114,560) (77,217) (2,027,498)
Other operating revenue 51,555 2,181,285 1,762 2,234,602
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,207,727 33,567 (133,934) 3,107,360
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from (to) other funds (272,828) (531,422) 672,790 (131,460)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (272,828) (531,422) 672,790 (131,460)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (836,945) (201,515) (446,038) (1,484,498)
Principal payments on debt (254,120) (494,894) - (749,014)
Proceeds from debt issuance 302,400 42,000 - 344,400
Interest paid on debt (89,529) (71,191) - (160,720)
Net cash used by capital and financing activities (878,194) (725,600) (446,038) (2,049,832)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on cash and investments 34,836 25,400 44 60,280
Net cash provided by investing activities 34,836 25,400 44 60,280
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,091,541 (1,198,055) 92,862 986,348
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 9,169,447 7,329,941 54,268 16,553,656
Cash and cash equivalents - ending $ 11,260,988 $ 6,131,886 $ 147,130 $ 17,540,004
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
to the Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,673,663 $ 2,880,250 $ 147,130 $ 9,701,043
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 1,777,885 1,144,556 - 2,922,441
Certificates of deposit 2,808,440 2,107,080 - 4,916,520
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 11,260,988 $ 6,131,886 $ 147130 $ 17,540,004
Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 126,149 $ 665,753 $ 67,865 $ 859,767
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,523,998 231,995 19,639 1,775,632
Pension expense 99,724 138,301 - 238,025
Change in assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable 200,266 (28,770) (3,379) 168,117
Due from other funds 1,262,932 (962,776) 300,156
State and federal receivables - (34,110) - (34,110)
Due from other governments - 22,428 - 22,428
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 26,636 6,147 (216,366) (183,583)
Accrued liabilities (28,666) (43,256) (3,281) (75,203)
Due to other funds (63,392) (68,496) (1,812) (133,700)
Compensated absences (4,906) 17,182 3,400 15,676
Total OPEB liability 64,986 89,169 - 154,155
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 3,207,727 ¢ 33,567 $ (133,934) $ 3,107,360

See notes to basic financial statements.
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DRAFT

CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
MARCH 31, 2021

Private
Purpose
Trust Fund Custodial Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 3 26,994
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 21,818 -
Total assets $ 21,818 $ 26,994
NET POSITION
Restricted for:
Trusts $ 21,818 % -
Forfeitures - 26,994
Total net position $ 21818 $ 26,994

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION — FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

DRAFT

Custodial Fund

160
15,129

15,279

16,384

(1,105)

28,099

Private
Purpose
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Interest $ 49
Forfeiture of bankruptcy proceeds -
Total additions 49
DEDUCTIONS
Disbursements to individuals, organizations or other governments -
i ~
Change in net position 49
Net position - beginning, as restated (Note 5) 21,769
Net position - ending $ 21,818

26,994

See notes to basic financial statements.
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DRAFT

CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Batavia (the City) have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are
described below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City reports related organizations under the guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
The Standards define the primary government, and redefines and establishes the criteria for which potential
component units are included in the reporting entity. The Standards also define financial accountability of the
primary government as being determined on the basis of fiscal dependency, appointment of a voting majority of a
governing Council, ability to impose its will or potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to,
or to impose specific financial burdens on the primary government.

According to GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 61, a related organization of a
primary government is defined as one in which the government appoints a voting majority of the board, but is not
financially accountable for the organization. The City Manager appoints a voting majority of the Batavia Housing
Authority’s board; however, no financial burden or benefit relationship exists between the City and the Authority.
The Authority maintains and runs a senior citizens’ housing unit within the City.

The accompanying basic financial statements include only the operations of the City, since management has
determined that there are no other organizations that meet the criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity of the
City.

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
1. GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. The
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds. Separate financial statements are
provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded
from the government-wide financial statements.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities present financial information about the reporting
government as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government in its
entirety, except those that are fiduciary. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of
internal transactions. Governmental activiies generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other exchange and non-exchange transactions. Operating grants include operating-specific
and discretionary (either operation or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific
grants. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods
or services.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and direct revenues for each
function of the City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with
and are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Direct revenues include charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the City, and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Revenues that are not classified as direct
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

The government-wide focus is on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the City's net
position resulting from the current year's activities.

2. FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts
that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized
into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds
within the governmental and enterprise categories.

31




DRAFT

CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Governmental Funds:

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed. The acquisition, use
and balances of expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through
governmental funds. The measurement focus of the governmental funds is based upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position. The following are the City's major governmental fund
types:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. The fund is used to account
for all financial resources except for those required to be accounted for in a separate fund.

Self-Insurance Fund — This fund is used to account for the City's workers’ compensation insurance and
health insurance activity. ‘

The City reports the following nonmajor funds consolidated into the nonmajor governmental funds column:

Capital Projects Fund — This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by the Enterprise Funds.

Special Revenue Funds:

These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts
or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes or for which
separate accounting is required by administrative action.

Special Grant Fund — This fund is used to account for community development block grants and other
federal and state grants not required to be accounted for in other funds.

Mall Maintenance Fund — This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the Genesee
Country Mall. '

Small Cities Fund — This fund is used to account for the activity of the City’s New York Small Cities Block
Grant and U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development programs.

Enterprise Funds:

These funds are used to account for ongoing operations or activities, which are similar to those often found in
the private sector. The measurement focus is based upon determination of net income, financial position and
cash flows. The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements, as well as, Financial Accounting
Standards Board's (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification unless these standards conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

Sewer and Water Funds — These funds are used to account for operations that provide water and sewer
services and are financed primarily by user charges.

City Centre Fund — This fund is used to account for the operations and maintenance of the City Centre.

Other Fund Types:

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for certain trust funds and other custodial funds. Custodial Funds report
fiduciary activities not held in trust. These activities are not included in the government-wide financial
statements because their resources do not belong to the City and are not available for use.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund — This fund is used to account for contributions made by individuals, for the
purpose of providing from the income of such contributions, funds to be utilized for fire protection and
indigent citizens. of the City.

Custodial Fund — This fund is used to account for activity related to bankruptcy proceedings being
collected by the City.
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CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the course of operations the City has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual
balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other funds.
While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the
preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included
as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in
business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as
internal balances in the business-type activities column. '

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial
resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for
recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and
all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the
availability period for this revenue source (within sixty days of year-end). All other revenue items are considered
to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The enterprise, custodial and private purpose trust funds are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION/FUND
BALANCE

1. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

The City's cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from date of acquisition. Certificates of deposit have an
original maturity of greater than three months or less from the date of acquisition. Additional investments that
exceed three months are separated in the financial statements and are further disclosed in Note 3.A.

2. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Certain assets are classified on the balance sheet as restricted because their use is limited. Debt proceeds
remaining after a project has been completed can only be used to pay down the related debt, and therefore
are restricted in use. The proceeds of bond or bond anticipation note (BAN) sales can only be used for the
stated purpose of the borrowing and are restricted specifically for that purpose. Amounts to support fund
balance restrictions are also reported as restricted.
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3. RECEIVABLES

Receivables are carried at their net realizable value. Receivables are written-off as uncollectible after the
likelihood of payment is considered remote by management. The allowance for uncollectible receivables has
been established by management, using past history of uncollectible receivables. As of March 31, 2021, the
provision for uncollectible receivables amounted to $30,006 and $8,892 in the Community Development and
Small Cities Grant Funds, respectively.

DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as “due
to and from other funds.”

The amounts reported on the Statement of Net Position for due to and due from other funds represents
amounts due between different fund types (governmentat and fiduciary funds). Eliminations have been made
for amounts due to and due from within the same fund type. A detailed description of the individual fund
balances at year-end is provided in Note 3.K.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column
in the government-wide financial statements.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by governmental
activities), the City chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition date or amount. The City was
able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through back trending (i.e.,
estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using an appropriate price-
level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition year). As the City constructs or
acquires additional capital assets each period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and
reported at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially
amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or
increase its estimated useful life.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of enterprise funds are included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed. The amount of interest capitalized depends on the specific
circumstances. In the prior year tax-exempt bond anticipation notes (BANS) were issued to finance specific
improvements related to water activity. This activity included projects such as water line reconstruction and
replacement, reconstruction and repairing. There was also a BAN issued for a software system upgrade
which is being partially capitalized by the water and sewer funds. Accordingly, the interest capitalized for the
year ended March 31, 2021 for water and sewer activities amounted to $37,885 and $3,401, respectively.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. Capitalization thresholds (the dollar value above
which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated
useful lives of capital assets reported in the government-wide statements are as follows:

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated

Threshold Method Useful Life
Infrastructure $ 200,000 straight-line 25-50 years
Buildings 50,000 straight-line 25-50 years
Improvements 50,000 straight-line 10-50 years
Furniture and equipment 5,000 straight-line 3-20 years
Vehicles 20,000 straight-line 3-5 years
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6. UNEARNED REVENUES

Unearned revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the measurable and available criteria for
recognition in the current period. This occurs when resources are received by the City before it has a legal
claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures. In subsequent
periods, when both recognition criteria are met, or when the City has legal claim to resources, the liability for
unearned revenues is removed and revenues are recognized.

7. INSURANCE

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
personal injury liability, and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased
from independent third parties. Judgments and claims are recorded when it is probable that an asset has
been impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Settled
claims from these risks have not yet exceeded commercial insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years.

8. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. Deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City
has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. They are related to pensions and other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) reported in the goverrment-wide Statement of Net Position. The deferred
amounts related to pensions and OPEB relate to differences between the actual investment earnings,
changes in assumptions and other pension and OPEB related charges.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position include a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. Deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has three
types of items that qualify for reporting in this category. In the government-wide financial statements the City
reports deferred amounts related to pension and OPEB. In the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds, the
City reports unavailable revenue related to property taxes.

9. NET POSITION FLOW ASSUMPTION

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (i.e., restricted bond or grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net position
and unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements, a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.

It is the City’s policy to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net
position is applied.

10. FUND BALANCE FLOW ASSUMPTION

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources
(the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report
as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental funds financial
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be
applied.

It is the City’s policy that the City Council will assess the current financial condition of the City and then
determine the order of application of expenditures to which fund balance classifications will be charged.
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11. FUND BALANCE POLICIES

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations
requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The City itself can establish limitations on the use of
resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the City's highest level of decision-making authority. The City Council is the
highest level of decision-making authority for the City that can, by adoption of a resolution prior to the end of
the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution remains in place
until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another resolution) to remove or revise the limitation.

The City has adopted a formal fund balance policy in which it shall strive to attain and maintain an adequate
fund balance in its general fund to provide flexibility and to mitigate current and future risks (e.g., revenue
shortfalls and unanticipated expenditures), to ensure stable tax rates, to provide for one-time opportunities
and to retain favorable credit ratings. The City will endeavor to maintain unassigned fund balances in its
general fund of fifteen to twenty-five percent of regular general fund operating expenditures. This amount
provides the liquidity necessary to accommodate the City's uneven cash flow, which is inherent in its periodic
tax collection schedule, and to respond to contingent liabilities.

If the unassigned fund balance falls below the fifteen to twenty-five percent minimum fund balance
percentage, the City’s Audit Advisory Committee will evaluate current fund balance classifications in order to
recommend the final distribution of fund balance in any fiscai year in consideration of estimated liabilities of
the City and sound financial planning.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes
but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The City Council has by resolution authorized the
City Manager to assign fund balance. The Council may also assign fund balance as it does when
appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent
year's appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other
words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely,
as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a commitment.

E. REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES
1. PROGRAM REVENUES

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and, 2) grants and
contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes,
and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

2. PROPERTY TAXES

Real property taxes are levied upon budget adoption and become an enforceable lien on April 1!, Taxes are
payable in two installments on May 1% and August 1. The City assumes enforcement responsibiiity for all
property taxes levied by Genesee County on properties within the City. The City also enforces real property
taxes of the Batavia City School District (District), which are unpaid at January 1%. The City pays the County
the entire levy in two installments and the District the full amount of the property taxes collected on their
behalf on a monthly basis. Any amounts which have been collected as of March 31t but have not yet been
remitted to the District are included in the account "Due to other governments”.

In the fund financial statements, property taxes are recorded as revenue in the period levied to the extent they
are collected within 60 days of the fiscal year-end. The City is permitted by the New York State Constitution
to levy taxes up to 2% of the most recent five-year average full valuation of taxable real property. Principal
and interest on long-term debt related to Water and Sewer debt (if application filed with Office of State
Comptroller) and budgetary appropriations for capital outlay are excludable. In the 2020-21 year, the five-
year average full valuation was $577,578,527 allowing for a maximum tax limit of $11,551,571 (includes
allowance exclusions). The City tax levy was $5,779,334 for the year ended March 31, 2021.
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3. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The City's labor agreements and City Council rules and regulations provide for sick and vacation leave. Upon
retirement certain eligible employees qualify for paid medical and dental insurance premiums and/or payment
for fractional values of unused sick leave. These payments are budgeted annually.

Consistent with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, an accrual for accumulated
sick leave is included in compensated absences at year-end. The compensated absences liability is
calculated based on the contractually negotiated rates in effect at year-end.

Compensated absences for governmental fund type employees are reported as a fund liability and as an
expenditure in the government-wide financial statements. A portion of the compensated absences liability
recognized is attributed to the value of sick leave converted to pay the employees’ share of postemployment
health insurance premiums. The compensated absences liability for the Governmental and Enterprise funds
at the year-end totaled $1,948,278 and $281,751, respectively. A liability for those amounts is reported in the
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements.

Payment of compensated absences recorded in the government-wide financial statements is dependent upon
many factors; therefore, timing of future payments are not readily determinable. However, management
believes that sufficient resources will be made available for the payment of compensated absences when
such payments become due.

4. ENTERPRISE FUNDS ~ OPERATING AND NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the water fund and
sewer fund are charges to customers for sales and services. The water fund also recognizes as operating
revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. The
principal operating revenues of the City Centre Fund are maintenance fees being charged to the City Centre
tenants. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

F. USE OF ESTIMATES IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

G. ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On May 8, 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain
Authoritative Guidance in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The effective dates of GASB Statements not yet
implemented by the City have been updated below to reflect the impact of this Statement.

The following are GASB Statements that have been issued recently and are currently being evaluated, by the
City, for their potential impact in future years.

» Statement No. 87, Leases, which will be effective for the year ending March 31, 2023.
o Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, which will
be effective for the year ending March 31, 2022,
» Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which will be effective for the year ending March 31, 2023.
e Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, which will be effective for the year ending March 31, 2023.
o Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, which will be effective for the year ending March
31, 2023.
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e Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements,
which will be effective for the year ending March 31, 2024.

e Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, which will be effective for the
year ending March 31, 2024.

» Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and
84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, which will be effective for the year ending March 31,
2023.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting — The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:

* No later than January 15", the Budget Officer/City Manager submits a tentative budget to the City Council for
the fiscal year commencing the following April 1%t. The tentative budget includes proposed expenditures and
the proposed means of financing for all funds except Capital Projects and the Fiduciary Funds.

e After public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments, no later than March 20™, the City Council
adopts the budget.

* All modifications of the budget must be approved by the City Council, however, the Budget Officer/City
Manager is authorized to transfer certain budgeted amounts within departments.

* Budgets are prepared for Enterprise Funds to establish the estimated contributions required from other funds
and to control expenditures.

 During the fiscal year, the City Council can legally amend the operating budgets and is empowered to
implement supplemental appropriations. Budget amendments are required for departmental budgetary
control. All budget amendments require City Council approval.

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City's investment policies are governed by State statutes. In addition, the City has its own written investment
policy. ~ City monies must be deposited in FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust companies located or
authorized to do business in New York State. The City Manager is authorized to use interest bearing demand
accounts and certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S.
agencies, repurchase agreements and obligations of the State of New York and its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance.
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations
of the state and its municipalities and school districts and obligations issued by other than New York State which
are entities rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical
rating organization.

The City’s aggregate bank balances were fully collateralized at March 31, 2021.

The City reports amounts to support restricted fund balance and unspent proceeds of debt as restricted cash and
cash equivalents and restricted certificates of deposit. At March 31, 2021, the City reported $5,273,838 and
$7,838,961 as cash and cash equivalents restricted in the governmental activities and business-type activities,
respectively, as well as $21,818 in the Private Purpose Trust Fund restricted for fire protection and assistance to
indigent citizens.
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Investment and Deposit Policy

The City follows an investment and deposit policy, the overall objective of which is to adequately safeguard the
principal amount of funds invested or deposited; conformance with federal, state and other legal requirements;
and provide sufficient liquidity of invested funds in order to meet obligations as they become due. Oversight of
investment activity is the responsibility of the City Manager.

Interest Rate Risk ‘

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of investments will be affected by changing interest rates. The City’s
investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses
arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

The City’s policy is to minimize the risk of loss due to failure of an issuer or other counterparty to an investment to
fulfill its obligations. The City’s investment policy authorizes the reporting entity to purchase the following types of
investments:

¢ Interest bearing demand accounts.

o Certificates of deposit.

¢ Obligations of the United States Treasury and United States agencies.
e Obligations of New York State and its localities.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, the reporting entity
may not recover its deposits. In accordance with the City’s investment and deposit policy, all deposits of the City
including interest bearing demand accounts and certificates of deposit, in excess of the amount insured under the
provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (FDIC) shall be secured by a pledge of securities with an
aggregate value equal to 100% of the aggregate amount of deposits.

The City’s third party custodial financial institution provided the following securities as collateral which are in
accordance with the City’s investment policy and third party custodial agreement:

e Obligations issued, fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest, by the United
States Treasury and United States agencies.

¢ Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by New York State and its localities.

o Obligations issued by other than New York State rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at
least one nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.

B. RECEIVABLES
Significant revenues accrued by the City at March 31, 2021, include the following:
General Fund:

Franchise fees 47,563
Miscellaneous 57,434

&

Total accounts receivables $ 104,997
State and federal receivables - miscellaneous $ 21,357
Self Insurance Fund:
Stop loss insurance 27,760
Miscellaneous 10,026
Total accounts receivables $ 37,786
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Water Fund;
Water rents receivable
Miscellaneous
Total accounts receivables

Sewer Fund:
Water rents receivable
Total accounts receivables

$

1,122,253

50

1,122,303

775,498

775,498

Due from other governments represents amounts due primarily from Genesee County, and other
governmental entities. Amounts accrued at March 31, 2021, consist of:

General Fund:
NYS sales tax
Fines and forfeitures

Total due from other governments

Water Fund:
City/County water agreement

C. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2021, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction work in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery, equipment & vehicles
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery, equipment & vehicles
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$ 1,687,703
6,944
$ 1,694,647
$___ 520000
Balance Balance
04/01/20 Increases Decreases 03/31/21
1,134,588 $ - $ -8 1,134,588
4,850,368 584,688 970,599 4,464,457
5,984,956 584,688 970,599 5,599,045
10,325,980 - - 10,325,980
7,231,290 262,945 160,000 7,334,235
16,570,289 1,706,984 - 18,277,273
34,127,559 1,969,929 160,000 35,937,488
4,565,507 260,529 - 4,826,036
3,884,543 393,407 144,000 4,133,950
6,291,287 939,381 - 7,230,668
14,741,337 1,593,317 144,000 16,190,654
19,386,222 376,612 16,000 19,746,834
25,371,178 $ 961,300 $ 986,599 $ 25,345,879
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Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the governmental activities as follows:

General government

Public Safety

Transportation

Culture and recreation

Home and community service

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction work in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery, equipment & vehicles
infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery, equipment & vehicles
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type capital assets, net

192,254

204,576

1,080,371

109,696

6,420

1,593,317
Balance Balance
04/01/20 Increases Decreases 03/31/21
$ 41,500 $ -3 - $ 41,500
2,462,171 1,053,303 3,118,039 397,435
2,503,671 1,053,303 3,118,039 438,935
42,113,437 785,546 - 42 898,983
2,068,500 431,198 22,017 2,477,681
20,910,797 2,332,490 - 23,243,287
65,092,734 3,549,234 22,017 68,619,951
30,437,910 1,089,950 - 31,527,860
1,233,431 133,757 22,017 1,345,171
8,610,342 551,925 - 9,162,267
40,281,683 1,775,632 22,017 42,035,298
24,811,051 1,773,602 - 26,584,653
$ 27314722 $ 2,826,905 $ 3,118,039 $ 27,023,588

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the business-type activities as follows:

Home and community services

$

4
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D. PENSION PLAN

New York State and Local Retirement System

Plan Description
The City participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) and the Local Police

and Fire Retirement System (PFRS), which are collectively referred to as New York State and Local Retirement
System (the System). This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement system. The net
position of the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement Fund (the Fund), which was
established to hold all net assets and record changes in fiduciary net position allocated to the System. The
Comptroller of the State of New York serves as the trustee of the Fund and is the administrative head of the
System. System benefits are established under the provisions of the New York State Retirement and Social
Security Law (NYSRSSL). Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the election is irrevocable.
The New York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits
cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a State
statute. The City also participates in the Public Employees’ Group Life Insurance Plan (GLIP), which provides
death benefits in the form of life insurance. The System is included in the State’s financial report as a pension
trust fund. That report, including information with regard to benefit's provided, may be found at
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/index.php or obtained by writing to the New York State and Local
Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, NY 12244.

Funding Policy
The System is noncontributory, except for employees who joined the ERS after July 27, 1976 who contribute

three percent (3%) of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees who joined on or after
January 10, 2010 (ERS) or January 9, 2010 (PFRS), who generally contribute three percent (3%) to three and
one half percent (3.5%) of their salary for their entire length of service. In addition, employee contribution rates
under ERS Tier VI vary based on a sliding salary scale. The Comptroller annually certifies the actuarially
determined rates expressly used in computing the employers’ contributions based on salaries paid during the
System’s fiscal year ending March 313,

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At March 31, 2020, the City reported the following liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability to
the System. The net pension liability was measured as of March 31, 2020, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2019. The City's
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. This
information was provided by the System in reports provided to the City.

ERS PFRS

Measurement date 03/31/2020 03/31/2020
Net pension liability $ 3,633,114 3 8,228,594
City's portion of the Plan's total

net pension liability 0.0137199 % 0.1539512 %
Change in proportion since

the prior measurement date (0.0004940) (0.0120368)
Pension expense at March 31, 2021 $ 1,165,581 $ 2,710,315
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At March 31, 2021, the City's reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions arose from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
ERS PFRS ERS PFRS

Differences between expected

and actual experience $ 213,823 $ 547,938 $ - $ 137,828
Change of assumptions 73,154 703,346 63,167 -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 1,862,511 3,705,595 - -
Changes in proportion and differences

between the City's contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 2,476 121,017 126,509 745,325
City's contributions subsequent to

the measurement date . 542,302 1,164,277 - -

Total » $ 2,694,266 $ 6,242,173 $ 189,676 $ 883,153

The City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended March 31, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

ERS PFRS
Year ended March 31:
2022 $ 292,729 $ 831,554
2023 488,240 988,427
2024 649,117 1,291,762
2025 532,202 1,088,467

2026 - (5,467)
Thereafter - -

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of the March 31, 2020, was determined by using an actuarial valuation as of April 1,
2019, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to March 31, 2020. The actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions:

ERS PFRS
Inflation _ 25 % 25 %
Salary increases 4.2 5.0
Investment rate of return (net of
investment expense, including inflation) 6.8 6.8
Cost of living adjustments 1.3 1.3

Annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2010 — March 31, 2015 System'’s experience with adjustments for
mortality improvements based on the Society of Actuaries’ Scale MP-2014. The actuarial assumptions used in
the April 1, 2019 valuation are based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period April 1, 2010 —
March 31, 2015.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of investment expenses
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation
as of March 31, 2020, for both ERS and PFRS are summarized below:

Long-Term Expected

Target Allocation Real Rate of Return

Asset Class:

Domestic equity 36.0 % 4.1 %
International equity 14.0 6.2
Private equity 10.0 6.8
Real estate 10.0 5.0
Absolute return strategies 2.0 3.3
Opportunistic funds/portfolio 3.0 4.7
Real assets 3.0 6.0
Bonds and mortgages 17.0 0.8
Cash 1.0 0.0
Inflation-indexed bonds 4.0 0.5
Total 100.0 %

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 6.8%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially
determined. Based upon the assumptions, the System'’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption

The following tables present the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.8%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (5.8%) or 1-percentage point higher (7.8%) than
the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Assumption Increase
(5.8%) (6.8%) (7.8%)

ERS
City's proportionate share

of the net pension liability $ 6,667,790 % 3,633,114 $ 838,165
PFRS
City's proportionate share

of the net pension liability $ 14,712,894 $ 8,228,594 $ 2,421,757
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
The components of the current-year net pension liability of the employers as of March 31, 2020, were as follows:

(Dollars in Thousands)

ERS PFRS Total
Employers' total pension liability $ 194,596,261 $ 35,309,017 $ 229,905,278
Plan net position 168,115,682 29,964,080 198,079,762
Employers' net pension liability $ 26,480,579 $ 5,344,937 $ 31,825,516
Ratio of plan net position to the
employers' total pension liability 86.4% 84.9% 86.2%

E. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY (OPEB)

City of Batavia Retiree Medical Plan (the Plan)

Plan Description
The City of Batavia (the City), administers the Plan as a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. The Plan

provides for continuation of health insurance benefits for certain retirees and their spouses and can be amended
by action of the City subject to applicable collective bargaining and employment agreements. The Plan does not
issue a standalone financial report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose of paying
benefits under the Plan.

The City provides postemployment health insurance to its retirees in accordance with provisions of the
employment contracts negotiated between the City and the Batavia Firefighters Association, I.A.F.F Local 896,
the Civil Service Employees Association, CSEA Local 819, the American Federation of State, City and Municipal
Employees, AFSCME Local 3632 and the Batavia Poiice Benevolent Association. Substantially all employees in
these bargaining units may become eligible for these benefits if they meet the retirement eligibility requirements
under their contracts while working for the City.

Funding Policy
The obligations of the Plan members, employers and other entities are established by action of the City pursuant

to applicable collective bargaining and employment agreements. The required contribution rates of the employer
and the members vary depending on the applicable agreement. The employer currently contributes enough
money to the Plan to satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The costs of administering the Plan
are paid by the City.

At March 31, 2021, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 35
Inactive employees entitled to but not receiving benefit payments 9
Active employees 72

Total 116

The City’s total OPEB liability of $7,426,633 was measured as of March 31, 2021 and was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2021.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs
The total OPEB liability in the March 31, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.25 %
Rate of compensation increase 3.00 %
Discount rate 227 %
Initial healthcare cost trend rate 4.50-7.00 %
Ultimate healthcare cost trend rate 3.78 %
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The discount rate was based on the Fidelity General Obligation 20-year AA Municipal Bond Index as of the
measurement date.

The mortality assumption was revised to the sex-distinct and job category-specific headcount-weighted Pub-2010
Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables for employees and health retirees, and then adjusted for mortality
improvements with Scale MP-2019 mortality improvement scale on a generational basis.

Retirement and termination assumptions reflect general published tables based on large-scale retirement plan
population data. The Plan’s estimated termination and retirement experience is then analyzed, and the base
table is adjusted accordingly as necessary. No formal experience study is prepared for this plan.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability:

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at April 1, 2020 $ 6,547,595
Changes for the year:

Service cost 125,548

Interest 172,022

Changes of benefit terms 443,102
Differences between expected and

actual experience 320,953

Changes in assumptions or other inputs 495,770

Benefit payments (678,357)

Net changes 879,038

Balance at March 31, 2021 $ 7,426,633

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.48 percent on April 1, 2020,
to 2.27 percent on March 31, 2021.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.27%) or 1 percentage point higher
(3.27%) than the current discount rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.27%) (2.27%) (3.27%)
Total OPEB liability $ 7,829,014 $ 7,426,633 $ 7,040,228

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if
it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower (2.78%) or 1 percentage
point higher (4.78%), using the post-65 medical trend rates, than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

Healthcare
1% Decrease Cost Trend Rates 1% Increase
(3.50% (4.50% (5.50%
decreasing decreasing decreasing
to 2.78%) to 3.78%) t0 4.78%)
Total OPEB liability $ 6,940,085 $ 7,426,633 $ 7,970,632
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended March 31, 2021, the City recognized OPEB expense of $184,720. At March 31, 2021, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Changes of assumptions or other inputs $ 1,083,152 72,637

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended March 31:

2022 $ (154,550)
2023 (154,550)
2024 (154,550)
2025 (154,550)
2026 (154,550)
Thereafter (237,765)

F. COMMITMENTS

Encumbrances

Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed (executory) contracts for goods or services (i.e.,
purchase orders, contracts, and commitments). Encumbrance accounting is utilized to the extent necessary to
assure effective budgetary control and accountability and to facilitate effective cash planning and control. While
all appropriations and encumbrances lapse at year end, valid outstanding encumbrances (those for which
performance under the executory contract is expended in the next year) are re-appropriated and become part of
the subsequent year's budget pursuant to state regulations.

The City considers encumbrances to be significant for amounts that are encumbered in excess of $50,000. As of
March 31, 2021, there were no individual significant encumbrances. The City recorded encumbrances of
$182,695 in the General Fund.

Construction Commitments
The City has ongoing construction capital projects related to various infrastructure throughout the City. For the

fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, the City had the following construction commitments outstanding:

Remaining

Vendor Project Balance

GHD Bur.of Maint. Facility ImprovementPlan  $ 15,249
GHD Fire Facility Improvement Plan 12,476
Architecture Resources  Jackson Square Improvement (DRi) 148,840
TY-Lin Richmond Avenue Rehabilitation (TIP) 171,600
TY- Lin Harvester Avenue Rehabilitation 158,400
GHD WWTP Air Header 69,700

Total $ 576,265

City Water Agreement
During the year ended March 31, 2019, the City entered into an amended and restated agreement with the

County, ending December 31, 2059, whereby the City is continuing to assume responsibility for the production,
treatment, operation, maintenance and/or supply of municipal water, as well as operating and maintaining the
facilities. Under the terms of the agreement, the County has agreed to lease the City's water supply and
treatment facilities for a term not to exceed 10 years, ending December 31, 2029. The agreement also calls for
the transfer of title to, access to, and/or rights to the City for certain machinery and equipment used in connection
with the water supply and treatment facility.
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in exchange, the City has agreed to purchase water from the County on a wholesale basis. The City rate for city
water customers in effect for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021 was $5.49 per 1,000 gallons. The rate was
increased to $5.68 per 1,000 gallons effective for water usage subsequent to March 31, 2021.

G. RISK MANAGEMENT
RISK FINANCING AND RELATED INSURANCE

Health Insurance Plan

The City independently self-insures costs related to an employee health insurance plan (the Plan). The Plan’s
objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer a health insurance program to obtain lower costs for
coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program. The Plan uses reinsurance agreements to
reduce exposure to large losses on insured events. Reinsurance permits recovery of a portion of the losses from
the reinsurer, although it does not discharge the liability of the Plan as a direct insurer of the risks reinsured.

Third party insurance is maintained by the City with a stop loss for the health insurance Plan in the amount of
$150,000 per event for the Plan’s fiscal year.

Since actual claim costs depend on complex factors, the process of computing claim liabilites does not
necessarily result in an exact amount. Such liabilities are based on the ultimate cost of claims (including future
claim adjustment expenses) that have been incurred but not charged or credited to expense in the periods in
which they are made. As of March 31, 2021, the City recorded a liability in the amount of $152,435 within the self-
insurance fund for incurred but not reported insured events.

Workers' Compensation Plan

The City is independently self-insured for costs related to an employee workers’ compensation plan (the Pian).
The self-insured Plan’s objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer a workers’ compensation program to
obtain lower costs for coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program.

Third party insurance is maintained by the City with a stop loss for the workers’ compensation plan in the amount
of $500,000 per event for the plan’s fiscal year.

Since actual claim costs depend on complex factors, the process of computing claim liabilities does not
necessarily result in an exact amount. Such liabilities are based on the ultimate cost of claims (including future
claim adjustment expenses) that have been incurred but not charged or credited to expense in the periods in
which they are made. As of March 31, 2021, the City has recorded a liability for future costs associated with open

- claims of $252,850. The City has not consulted an actuary and has not estimated a liability for incurred but not
reported claim liabilities. Claim activity consists of open claims being revalued and payment on claims.

Changes in the reported health insurance and workers' compensation liabilities since March 31, 2019, resulted
from the following:

Health Workers'
Insurance Compensation Total
Estimated claims March 31,2019  § 122,611 $ 60,158 $ 182,769
Claims incurred 2019-2020 3,391,291 599,595 3,990,886
Payments 2019-2020 (3,391,662) (419,936) (3,811,598)
Estimated claims March 31,2020 $ 122,240 $ 239,817 $ 362,057
Claims incurred 2020-2021 2,289,474 432,969 2,722,443
Payments 2020-2021 (2,259,279) (419,936) (2,679,215)
Estimated claims March 31,2021  $ 152,435 $ 252,850 $ 405,285

H. SHORT-TERM DEBT
The purpose of all of the short-time borrowings was to provide resources for various capital construction or

improvement projects. The form of financing used in alf cases was bond anticipation notes (BAN). The amounts
issued for governmental activities are accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund.
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State law requires that bond anticipation notes issued for capital purposes be converted to long-term obligations
within five years after the original issue date, if not completely repaid. However, bond anticipation notes issued for
assessable improvement projects may be renewed for periods equivalent to the maximum life of the permanent
financing, provided that stipulated annual reductions of principal are made.

The schedule below details the changes in short-term capital borrowings during the year ended March 31, 2021:

Original Issue Balance Balance
Date Interest rate 04/01/20 Issued Redemptions 3/31/2021
Governmental Activities
Software system 2019 199% § 375,000 $§ - 375,000 $ -
Total governmental activities bond anticipation notes $ 375,000 $ -§ 375,000 $ -
Original Issue Balance Balance
Date Interest rate 04/01/20 Issued Redemptions 3/31/2021
Business-Type Activities
Sewer ;
Software system 2019 199% § 187,500 § -3 187,500 $ -
Water
Union St Water Project 2019 1.99% 1,014,000 - 1,014,000 -
South Main St. & Brooklyn Ave
Water Project 2019 1.99% 887,000 - 887,000 -
Software System 2019 1.99% 187,500 - 187,500 -
Total water bond anticipation notes 2,088,500 - 2,088,500 -
Total business-type activities bond anticipation notes $ 2,276,000 $ - $ 2,276,000 $ -

l. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
noncurrent liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts during the current
period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Further, the unmatured principal of general long-term debt does not require current
appropriations and expenditure of governmental fund financial resources.

The City's outstanding long-term liabilities include serial bonds, installment purchase debt, premium obligation on

bond, compensated absences, due to other governments, other postemployment benefits, and aggregate net
pension liability.
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General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities. General
obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. General obligation bonds
outstanding at March 31, 2021, are as follows:

interest Outstanding
Original Original Rates to Final Balance
Issue Description Issue Date Borrowing Maturity Maturity 03/31/2021
Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds
City Centre - Refunding 2014 2,856,000 2.0-3.750% 2033 $ 2,080,000
CAT Loader Acquisition 2018 195,500 1.10-4.15% 2025 150,000
ERP - Software Project 2020 305,000 2.04% 2024 305,000
VAC Truck 2020 75,600 2.04% 2031 75,600
Total governmental activities serial bonds $ 2,610,600
Business-Type Activities
Sewer Obligation Bonds
City Centre - Refunding 2014 357,000 2.0-3.750% 2033 260,000
Various Projects - 2017 3,439,600 2.5-3.000% 2037 2,880,000
ERP - Software Project 2020 1,500 2.04% 2024 152,500
VAC Truck 2020 302,400 2.04% 2031 302,400
Total sewer fund serial bonds $ 3,594,900
Water Obligation Bonds
City Centre - Refunding 2014 357,000 2.0-3.750% 2033 260,000
Various Projects 2017 4,376,000 2.5-3.000% 2037 815,000
ERP - Software Project 2020 152,500 2.04% 2024 152,500
VAC Truck 2020 42,000 2.04% 2031 42,000
South Main Street Water 2020 546,006 2.04% 2041 546,006
Union Street Water 2020 970,676 2.04% 2041 970,676
Total water fund serial bonds $ 2,786,182
Total business-type activities serial bonds $ 6,381,082

Legal Debt Margin

The City is subject to a debt limit that is 7.0 percent of the five-year average of the full valuation of taxable real
property. At March 31, 2021, that amount was $40,430,497. As of March 31, 2021, the total outstanding debt
applicable to the limit was $6,368,805, which is 15.75% of the total debt limit.
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Changes in the government’s long-term liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2021, are as fbllows:

Balance Balance Due Within
04/01/2020 Additions Reductions 03/31/2021 One Year
Governmental Activities
{
Bonds Payable:
General obligation bonds $ 2613000 $ 380,600 383,000 2,610,600 $ 273,800
Plus unamortized premium 45,400 - 3,497 41,903 3,497
Other liabilities:
Due to other governments - Landfill 257,466 - 11,710 245,756 20,480
Installment purchase debt 245,049 - 108,923 136,126 108,810
Compensated absences 2,013,398 1,061,026 1,126,146 1,948,278 194,828
Total OPEB liability 6,236,732 1,448,968 649,496 7,036,204 -
Net pension liability* 3,387,983 7,056,811 - 10,444,794 -
Total governmental activities $ 14799028 $§ 9,947,405 2,282,772 22463,661 $ 601,415
Business-Type Activities
Bonds Payable:
General obligation bonds $ 4,482,000 $ 2,166,082 267,000 6,381,082 $ 467,882
Plus unamortized premium 11,350 - 874 10,476 874
Other liabilities:
Installment purchase debt 54,875 - 27,696 27,179 27179
Compensated absences 266,075 115,976 100,300 281,751 28,829
Total OPEB liability 310,863 191,778 112,212 390,429 -
Net pension liability* 402,840 1,014,074 - 1,416,914 -
Total business-type activities $ 5528003 $ 3,487,910 508,082 8,507,831 §$ 524,764

* Additions/reductions to net pension liability are presented net.
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As of March 31, 2021, there were no authorized but unissued bonds:

Governmental Activities

Year ending Bonds Instaliment Purchase Debt
March 31, Principal Interest Premium Principal Interest
2022 $ 273,800 $ 80,230 $ 3,497 $ 108,810 $ 2,582
2023 283,700 74,382 3,497 27,316 471
2024 286,200 67,371 3,497 - -
2025 185,200 60,890 3,497 - -
2026 185,200 55,163 3,497 - -
2027-2031 892,500 191,378 17,483 - -
2032-2036 504,000 38,549 6,935 - -
Total $ 2,610,600 $ 567,963 $ 136,126 $ 3,053

Year ending

$ 41,903

Total Governmental Activities

March 31, Principal Interest

2022 $ 382,610 $ 82,812

2023 311,016 74,853

2024 286,200 67,371

2025 185,200 60,890

2026 185,200 55,163

2027-2031 892,500 191,378

2032-2036 504,000 38,549

Total $ 2,746,726 $ 571,016
Business-Type Activities
Year ending Bonds Installment Purchase Debt
March 31, Principal Interest Premium Principal Interest
2022 $ 467,882 $ 152,258 $ 874 $ 27,179 $ 503
2023 486,300 144,397 874 - -
2024 493,800 133,703 874 - -
2025 389,800 123,791 874 - -
2026 404,800 114,695 874 - -
2027-2031 2,142,500 419,778 4,371 - -
2032-2036 1,376,000 153,099 1,735 - -
2037-2041 620,000 31,050 - - -
Total $ 6,381,082 $ 1,272,771 $ 10,476 $ 27,179 $ 503

Year ending Total Business-Type Activities

March 31, Principal Interest

2021 $ 495,061 $ 152,761

2022 486,300 144,397

2023 493,800 133,703

2024 389,800 123,791

2025 404,800 114,695

2026-2030 2,142,500 419,778

2031-2035 1,376,000 153,099

2036-2038 620,000 31,050

Total $ 6,408,261 $ 1,273,274
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Compensated Absences

As explained in Note 1, the City records the value of governmental and enterprise type compensated absences.
The annual budgets of the respective funds of which the employees’ payroll is recorded provide funding for these
benefits as they become payable throughout the year. Payments by the City to liquidate compensated absences
are typically from the funds in which the individuals are employed. These operating funds include General,
Sewer, Water, and City Centre funds. Since the payment of compensated absences is dependent upon many
factors, the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. While the payments of compensated absences
are dependent upon many factors, the City has estimated that $194,828 and $28,829 for the governmental
activities and business-type activities will be due within one year, respectively.

Total OPEB Liability
As explained in Note 3.E., the City records the value of other postemployment benefits. Payments by the City to

liquidate other postemployment benefits are typically from the funds in which the individuals are employed. These
operating funds include General, Sewer and Water Funds.

Net Pension Liability

The City reported a liability of $10,444,794 and $1,416,914 for the governmental activities and business-type
activities, respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2021, for its proportionate share of the net pension liability
for the Police and Fire Retirement System and the Employee Retirement System. Refer to Note 3.D. for
additional information related to the City’s net pension liability. Payments by the City for retirement contributions
are typically from funds in which the individuals are employed. These operating funds include General, Sewer
and Water Funds.

NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE

Net Position
The government-wide financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as net
investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.

Net investment in capital assets — This category consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by outstanding balances of bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvements of those assets. The following presents a reconciliation of capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation), to net investment in capital assets:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation $ 25345879 $ 27,023,588
Bonds payable used for capital assets (2,610,600) (6,381,082)
Unamortized debt premium (41,903) (10,476)
Installment purchase debt (136,126) (27,179)

Unspent debt proceeds 6,513 29,670

Net investment in capital assets $ 22563,763 $ 20,634,521

Restricted net position — This category consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets. Assets are reported as restricted when constraints are placed on asset use
either by external parties or by law through constitutional provision or enabling legislation. Restricted net position
is consistent with restricted fund balance amounts at March 31, 2021.

Unrestricted net position — This category represents net position of the City not restricted for any project or other
purpose.

Fund Balance
In the fund financial statements there are five classifications of fund balance:

Restricted ~ represents amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external resource
providers such as grantors or enabling federal, state, or local legislation. Restrictions may be changed or listed
only with the consent of the resource providers.
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* Restricted for retirement contribution — represents funds set aside for any upcoming retirement
contributions required of the City.

» Restricted for employee benefit accrued liability — represents funds set aside for compensated absences of
City employees.

* Restricted for insurance — represents funds set aside for medical and liability claims.

s Restricted for capital projects — represents funds to be used for construction, reconstruction and/or
acquisition of capital improvements and equipment.

* Restricted for other purposes — represents funds required to be used for the following purposes:

Business Improvement District $ 259,098
Police - 5,159
Drug asset forfeiture 348
State external EMS program 3,828
Non-State EMS program 19,531
Farrell park 1,523
Public broadcasting 11,189
Centennial celebration 9,188

Total restricted for other purposes $ 309,864

* Restricted for repairs — represents funds set aside to be used for repairs of Dwyer Stadium.

* Restricted for Special Grant and Small Cities Funds — represents funds that had restrictions externally
imposed by the funding agency that provided funding for the loan programs administered by the City.

* Restricted for workers’ compensation — represents funds set aside for workers’ compensation of City
employees.

Committed — represents amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by the adoption of
an ordinance committing fund balance for a specified purpose by the City prior to the end of the fiscal year. Once
adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until the resources have been spent for the
specified purpose or the Council adopts another ordinance to remove or revise the limitation.

Assigned — represents amounts that are intended to be used by the City for specified purposes but do not meet
the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

» Assigned to subsequent years’ expenditure — represents available fund balance being appropriated to
meet expenditure requirements in the 2022 fiscal year.

» Assigned for encumbrances — represents amounts related to unperformed contracts for goods and
services.

» Assigned to specific use — represents fund balance within the General Fund and special revenue funds
that is assigned for a specific purpose. The assignment's purpose relates to each fund's operations and
represents amounts within funds that are not restricted or committed.

Nonspendable — represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. As of March 31, 2021, the City had no nonspendable
fund balances.

Unassigned — represents the residual amount for the General Fund that is not contained in other classifications.
The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Addltlonally, any deficit fund
balance within other governmental fund types is reported as unassigned.
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Detail of Fund Balances

As of March 31, 2021, fund balances were classified as follows:

Special
Revenue Fund Nonmaijor
General Self Insurance Funds Total
Restricted:
Retirement contribution $ 334,253 $ -3 -3 334,253
Employee benefit accrued liability 150,651 - - 150,651
Insurance 369,002 - - 369,002
Capital projects 3,074,114 - - 3,074,114
Other 309,864 - - 309,864
Repairs 36,340 - - 36,340
Small cities - - 67,079 67,079
Special grant - - 411,808 411,808
Workers' compensation - 580,424 - 580,424
Health insurance - 10,156 - 10,156
Committed:
Master plan 8,700 - - 8,700
K-9 4,092 - - 4,092
Habitat architect plans 15,000 . - - 15,000
Assigned:
Subsequent years' expenditures 269,221 - - 269,221
Encumbrances:
General government 85,703 - - 85,703
Public safety 96,992 - - 96,992
Subdivision contractor 39,689 - - 39,689
Parks 1,399 ) - - 1,399
Memorial Bricks 3,626 - - 3,526
Workers' compensation - 485,110 - 485,110
Health insurance - 13,863 - 13,863
Mall maintenance - - - -
Capital projects - - 165,157 165,157
Unassigned:
General fund 3,238,617 - - 3,238,617
Total $ 8,037,163 $ 1,089,553 § 644,044 $ 9,770,760
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K.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
The composition of interfund balances as of March 31, 2021, is as follows:

Due from /to other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Sewer $ 7,722
General Water 10,015
General City center 805
Water General 1,117,015
City center Water 1,395
Self insurance General 205,048
Self insurance Water 25,631
Self insurance Sewer 23,068
Self insurance City center 2,563
Total $ 1,393,262

The outstanding balances between funds result primarily from the transfer into the Self Insurance Fund due to
budget overages (expenditures exceeded budget). In addition, outstanding balances are the result of payroll
transactions and to cover checks.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund transfers as of March 31, 2021, is as follows:

Interfund transfers:
Transfer in:
General Capital Self Insurance City Centre Total

Transfer out:
General $ - % 140459 $ 3,007,610 $ 705263 $ 3,853,332
Water 225,000 35,000 271,422 - 531,422
Sewer - 35,000 237,828 - 272,828
City Centre - - 32,473 - 32,473
Self insurance 302,807 - - - 302,807
Capital 38,711 - - - 38,711

Total $ 566,518 $ 210459 $ 3,549,333 $ 705,263 $ 5,031,573

During the year, transfers were made per the adopted budget for various purposes. In addition, transfers were
made related to the current capital projects, and the allocation of those projects to the applicable funds.
Additionally, transfer was made to cover expenses in the Self Insurance Fund.

JOINT VENTURES
The City participates in various joint ventures with other local municipalities for the purpose of providing

intermunicipal services. These activities are excluded from the financial statements of all participating
municipalities.
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N. CONTINGENCIES

Assessments — The City is a defendant in various litigations under Article 7 of the Real Property Tax Law of the
State of New York to review tax assessments. While the City vigorously defends assessments, the likelihood of
success is on a case by case basis, and is dependent upon various factors including market values and
appraised amounts. Management believes that the level of potential losses on these cases, if any, would be
immaterial and no provisions have been made within the financial statements.

Grants — In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant funds from various Federal and State
agencies. These grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of which is
to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any disallowed expenditures resulting
from such audits could become a liability of the governmental funds. While the amount of any expenditures which
may be disallowed cannot be determined at this time, management expects any amounts to be immaterial.

Litigation — The City is also involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its operations. The City believes
that its ultimate liability, if any, in connection with these matters will not have a material effect on the City’s
financial condition or results of operations.

Other — On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak a "Public Health
Emergency of International Concern" and on March 10, 2020, declared it to be a pandemic. Actions taken around
the world to help mitigate the spread of the coronavirus include restrictions on travel, and quarantines in certain
areas, and forced closures for certain types of public places and businesses. The City's management has
assessed these events and the impact of these restrictions and closures related to the City’s operations. As of
the date of these financial statements and as these events continue to unfold, management believes there will be
an impact related to sales and mortgage tax that the City will receive in 2022. Management believes that these
tax revenues will be lower in 2022 than monies collected in previous years due to a decrease in local spending.
The 2022 adopted budget has been adapted to account for this change, and the City has implemented an
approach including a combination of a significant equipment expenditure decreases, in addition to an increase in
fund balance allocation for a portion of the major funds, to account for a potential loss of revenue in 2022.

O. LANDFILL CLOSURE COSTS

The City has been identified by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) as a responsible party
which can be held liable for a portion of the long-term maintenance and operation of a landfill site in the Town of
Batavia. ,

The cost for the long-term maintenance and operation of the landfill has been estimated to be approximately
$327,674. All parties designated as potentially responsible parties by the EPA participated in a Pilot Allocation
Program. As a result of the Pilot Allocation Program, 75% of the long-term operation and maintenance costs
have been allocated to the City, or $245,746. As of March 31, 2021, a liability has been recorded in the
Governmental Activities funds for future maintenance and operation costs.

NOTE 4 — TAX ABATEMENTS

The Genesee County Industrial Economic Development Agency d/b/a Genesee County Economic Development
Center (the Agency), created by Chapter 565 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York pursuant to Title | of
Article 18-A of General Municipal Law of the State of New York (collectively “the Act”), has seventeen real property
tax abatement agreements with various businesses in the City under Section 412-a of the New York State Real
Property Tax Law and Section 874 of the Act for the purpose of economic development in the City.

Generally, these agreements provide for a 100 percent abatement of real property taxes in exchange for a payment in
lieu of taxes (PILOT) based on the requirements noted in said individual agreements. Should the property owner not
comply with the policies and laws as set forth in each agreement, the PILOT will discontinue as outlined in each
agreement.

As a result of these tax abatement agreements, for the year ended March 31, 2021, the City's total tax revenues were
reduced by $72,046.

Copies of the agreements may be obtained from the City Hall, One Batavia City Centre, Batavia, NY 14020.
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NOTE 5 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 22, 2021 the City received the first installment of funding awarded through the American Rescue Plan (ARP)
in the account of $734,384. In addition, The City was awarded a Northern Regional Border Commission grant for
$410,000 in connection with a water line project on Bank Street to support future develop and the police station.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through XXXX, 2021 which is the date the financial statements are
available for issuance, and has determined, with the exception of the events noted in the above paragraph, there are
no subsequent events that require disclosure under generally accepted accounting principles other than the
authorization of debt issuance referred to above.
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CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY’S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*

Year Ended March 31,
2019 2020 2021

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 123,841 § 133,160 $ 125,548
Interest 231,012 214,961 172,022
Changes of benefit terms - - 443,102
Differences between expected and actual experience - - 320,953
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 64,470 336,194 495,770
Benefit payments (507,022) (577,911) (678,357)

Net change in total OPEB liability (87,699) 106,404 879,038
Total OPEB liability - beginning 6,528,890 6,441,191 6,547,595
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 6441191 § 6,547,595 § 7,426,633
Covered-employee payroll $ 5877545 § 5,520,786 5,455,672
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 109.6% 118.6% 136.1%

* This Schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be included as they become available.

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Variance
Original Final From Final
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Real property taxes $ 5,806,078 $ 5,806,078 $ 5,840,041 § 33,963
Real property tax items 263,000 263,000 261,480 (1,520)
Sales and other taxes 6,880,000 6,880,000 7,034,061 154,061
Departmental income 325,858 232,858 101,299 (131,559)
Intergovernmental revenue 100,150 100,150 - {100,150)
Use of money and property 124,584 124,584 87,630 ' (36,954)
Licenses and permits 69,850 69,850 147,757 77,907
Fines and forfeitures 58,500 151,500 52,020 (99,480)
Sale of property and compensation for loss 12,500 - 100,030 100,030
Miscellaneous local sources 1,881,335 325,498 194,579 (130,919)
State and federal sources 672,972 3,024,210 2,786,781 (237,429)
Total revenues 16,194,827 16,977,728 16,605,678 (372,050)
EXPENDITURES
Current: .
General government 2,258,010 2,309,685 1,817,652 492,033
Public safety 8,042,405 8,212,016 7,802,853 409,163
Health 19,615 19,615 18,648 967
Transportation 2,428,131 2,613,021 1,690,221 922,800
Economic assistance 130,157 818,199 203,389 614,810
Culture and recreation 821,353 1,019,311 724,096 295,215
Home and community services 312,070 312,070 248,573 63,497
Refuse and recycling 94,790 94,790 88,888 5,902
Debt service:
Principal 483,312 491,923 491,923 -
Interest 104,083 98,344 98,344 -
Total expenditures 14,693,926 15,988,974 13,184,587 2,804,387
Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,500,901 988,754 3,421,091 2,432,337
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund transfers in 335,000 335,000 566,518 231,518
Interfund transfers out (2,904,710) (2,732,210) (3,853,332) (1,121,122)
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,569,710) (2,397,210) (3,286,814) (889,604)
Net change in fund balance * (1,068,809) (1,408,456) 134,277 1,542,733
Fund balance - beginning of year 7,643,788 7,643,788 7,643,788 : -
Fund balance - end of year $ 6,574,979 $ 6,235,332 § 7,778,065 $ 1,542,733

* The net change in fund balance is included in the budget as an appropriation (i.e., spenddown) of
fund balance and re-appropriation of prior year encumbrances.

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE SELF INSURANCE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Variance
Original Final From Final
Budget Budget Actual Budget

REVENUES

Use of money and property $ - $ 772§ 7,933 § 7,161

Sale of property and compensation for loss - 354,679 354,679 -

Miscellaneous local sources - - 6,426 6,426

Total revenues - 355,451 369,038 13,587

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 101,500 98,623 97,486 1,137

Employee health benefits 2,645,770 3,470,408 3,463,130 7,278

Total expenditures 2,747,270 3,569,031 3,560,616 8,415

Excess (deficit) of revenues over expenditures (2,747,270) (3,213,580) (3,191,578) 22,002
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Interfund transfers in 2,857,270 3,113,580 3,549,333 435,753

Interfund transfers out (110,000) - (302,807) {302,807)

Total other financing sources 2,747,270 3,113,580 3,246,526 132,946

Net change in fund balance * - (100,000) 54,948 154,948
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,034,605 1,034,605 1,034,605 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 1,034,605 $ 934,605 $ 1,089,553 $ 154,948

* The net change in fund balance is included in the budget as an appropriation (i.e., spenddown) of fund balance.

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for the
General Fund and the special revenue funds (Self Insurance Fund, a major fund). The budgetary schedule for the
general fund does not include the Business Improvement District fund (BID) which does not have a legally adopted
budget. The Capital Projects Fund is appropriated on a project-length basis. Budgetary comparison schedules are
presented for the General Fund and for each major special revenue fund, however, budgetary information for the
nonmajor funds is not considered required supplementary information and, therefore, is not presented. The Capital
Projects Fund is appropriated on a project-length basis and does not have appropriated budgets since other means
control the use of these resources (e.g., grant awards and endowment requirements), which sometimes span a period
of more than one fiscal year. The Water, Sewer and City Centre Enterprise Funds have a budget that is utilized for
cost control purposes.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The City Manager may make transfers of
appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between departments require the approval of the city
council or, in certain limited circumstances the City Manager. The legal level of budgetary control (e.g., the level at
which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the department level.

Appropriations in all budgeted funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year even if they have related encumbrances.
Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed (executory) contracts for goods or services (i.e., purchase
orders, contracts, and commitments). Encumbrance accounting is utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective
budgetary control and accountability and to facilitate effective cash planning and control. While all appropriations and
encumbrances lapse at year end, valid outstanding encumbrances (those for which performance under the executory
contract is expected in the next year) are re-appropriated and become part of the subsequent year's budget pursuant
to state regulations. The City considers encumbrances to be significant for individual amounts that are encumbered in
excess of $50,000. As of March 31, 2021, there were no individually significant encumbrances.

NOTE 2 - FACTORS AFFECTING TRENDS IN PENSIONS

The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the pension systems is significantly dependent on the
performance of the stock market and the funds that the retirement system invests in. In addition to this factor, the
discount factor has varied from 7.5% to 6.8% since the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68.

ERS PFRS
Year ended March 31:
2020 6.80% 6.80%
2019 7.00% 7.00%
2018 7.00% 7.00%
2017 7.00% 7.00%
2016 7.00% 7.00%
2015 7.50% 7.50%

NOTE 3 — FACTORS AFFECTING TRENDS IN RETIREE HEALTH PLAN (OPEB)

The City's retiree health plan's most significant factors and assumptions affecting the total OPEB liability are as
follows:

Ultimate
Discount Salary Inflation Healthcare Cost
Rate Scale Rate Trend Rate
Year ended March 31:
2021 227 % 3.00 % 225 % 3.78 %
2020 248 3.00 2.25 3.78
2019 3.42 3.00 2.25 3.78
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CITY OF BATAVIA, NEW YORK
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
MARCH 31, 2021

Special Revenue Funds : Total
Mall Small Special Nonmajor
Maintenance Cities Grant Capital Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Projects Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ -3 - $ - 162,823 § 162,823
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted - 25,004 229,719 6,513 261,236
Loan receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectible accounts) - 42,075 182,089 - 224,164
State and federal receivables - - - 120,122 120,122
Total assets $ - $ 67,079 § 411,808 289,458 § 768,345
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - § - $ -5 124301 § 124,301
Total liabilities - - - 124,301 124,301
FUND BALANCES
Restricted - 67,079 411,808 - 478,887
Assigned - - - 165,157 165,157
Total fund balances - 67,079 411,808 165,157 644,044
Total liabilities and fund balances $ - $ 67079 § 411,808 § 289,458 § 768,345
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Special Revenue Funds Total
Mall Small Special Nonmajor
Maintenance Cities Grant Capital Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Projects Funds
REVENUES
Use of money and property 15 § 369 $ 1,774 § 1,555 § 3,713
Miscellaneous local sources - 8,048 3,616 - 12,564
State sources - - - 83,878 83,878
Federal sources - - - 59,600 59,600
Total revenues 15 9,317 5,390 145,033 159,755
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Economic assistance and opportunity 13,971 - - - 13,971
Home and community services - 15,863 - - 15,863
Capital outlay:
General government - - - 303,479 303,479
Transportation - - - 342,928 342,928
Culture and recreation - - - 39,023 39,023
Total expenditures 13,971 15,863 - 685,430 715,264
Excess/(deficit) of revenues over expenditures (13,956) (6,546) 5,390 (540,397) (555,509)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund transfers in - - - 210,459 210,459
Interfund transfers out - - - (38,711) (38,711)
Serial bond proceeds - - - 380,600 380,600
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - 552,348 552,348
Net change in fund balances (13,956) (6,546) 5,390 11,951 {3,161)
Fund balances - beginning 13,956 73,625 406,418 153,206 647,205
Fund balances - ending -3 67,079 $ 411,808 $ 165,157 § 644,044
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August XX, 2021

To the President and Members of the City Council
City of Batavia
Batavia, New York 14020

President and Members of the City Council:

We are pleased to present this report related to our aj
York, (the City) as of and for the year ended March 8§
professional standards to be communicated§iEmyou i

process.

This report is intended solely for the infel
and should not be used by anyape
questions you have regarding J{iSTepois

Very truly yours,
Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C.
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Required Communications

Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditors Communications with Those Charged with
Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor and those charged
with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our responsibilities regarding the
financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit that are significant and relevant to your
responsibility to oversee the financial and related compliance reporting process.

Area Comments

Our Responsibilities with Regard to the Financial Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally
Statement Audit accepted in the United States of America have been
’ described to you in our arrangement letter dated
February 26, 2021. Our audit of the financial statements
does not relieve management or those charged with
governance of their responsibilities, which are also

described in that letter.

Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of the We have issugd” a separate communication, regarding
Financial Statement Audit the planned jgBope and timing of our audit and have

identifiedgigni ‘c‘f;n_ risks of material misstatement.

Accounting Policies and Practices efgrability of ﬂu Policies and Practices

jenerally accepted principles, in certain

i inces, management may select among
alterngflye accounting practices. In our view, in such
i tdices, management has selected the preferable
Joting?practice.

dgE0t
| gRdoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

BManagement has the ultimate responsibility for the
__§appropriateness of the accounting policies used by the
@ City. The City did not adopt any new accounting
standards in the current year.

Significant or Unusual Transactions

We did not identify any significant or unusual
transactions or significant accounting policies in
controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Summary information about the process used by
management in formulating particularly sensitive
accounting estimates and about our conclusions
regarding the reasonableness of those estimates is in the
attached "Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates”.




Required Communications (Continued)

Area

Comments

Basis of Accounting

Audit Adjustments

Uncorrected Misstatements

Consultations with Other Accountants

Significant Issues Discussed

Management

Significant Difficulties Encountered in
Performing the Audit

Letter Communicating Other Matters

with

Significant Written Communication Between

Management and Our Firm

The basic financial statements were prepared on the
assumption that the City will continue as a going
concern.

An audit adjustment, other than those that are clearly
trivial, proposed by us and recorded by the City are
shown in the attached “Summary of Recorded Audit
Adjustment”.

We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements
other than misstatements that are clearly trivial.

We are not aware of any consultations management
had with other accountants about accounting or
auditing matters.

issues arising from the audit were
wwere the subject of correspondence with

No signifiga
discuss. ,

tinter any significant difficulties in
%%nent during the audit.

iave separately communicated other matters
Ntified during our audit of the financial statements.




City of Batavia
Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates
Year Ended March 31, 2021

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and experience
about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to monitor throughout the
year the process used to determine and record these accounting estimates. The following describes the significant
accounting estimates reflected in the City's March 31, 2021 financial statements:

Basis of Our Conclusions

Estimate Accounting Policy

Management’s
Estimation Process

on Reasonableness of
Estimate

Depreciation of
Property, Plant &
Equipment

property, plant and
equipment over the
estimated lives of the
assets.

Compensated Absences Management estimates

Liability compensated absences
liability using the unpaid
vacation and sick time

Workers’ Compensation 409

Claim Liabilities

A
Rahty adminjstrator to

Health Insurance Claim
Liability

Management uses claim
lag information provided
by their third-party
administrator to estimate
health insurance claim
liabilities.

Management depreciates

Useful lives were assigned
based on the City’s useful
life policy. Management
was consistent ing
calculating depgeciation

én multiplies the unpaid
ours by the employee’s
pay rate to estimate the

Estimates for workers’
compensation claim
liabilities based on
summary loss reports
provided by the City’s third-
party administrator.

Estimates for health
insurance claim liabilities
are based on claim lag
information provided by the
City’s third-party
administrator.

The methods and lives used
to estimate depreciation
expense appears
reasonable.

Management's process to
estimate compensated
absences liability appears
reasonable.

Management'’s process to
estimate workers’
compensation claim
liabilities appears
reasonable.

Management’s process to
estimate health insurance
claim liabilities appears
reasonable.




City of Batavia
Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates
Year Ended March 31, 2021

Management’s

Estimate Accounting Policy Estimation Process

Basis of Our Conclusions
on Reasonableness of
Estimate

Postemployment Benefit
Liability, Deferred
Outflows and Deferred
Inflows of Resources

Management estimates
long-term postemployment
benefit liability, deferred
outflows and deferred
inflows of resources based
on information obtained
from an actuarial valuation
of the City’s
postemployment benefit
liability. Management
estimates deferred outflows
of resources contributions
subsequent to the
measurement date based
on the actuarial valuation

Management receives a
full actuarial valuation
every two years. Interim
actuarial valuations are
performed in alternate
years. March 3121, with
a measurement date of
March 31, 2021.
Estimates for
postemploymg i benefit
liability, defefred inflows

JEstimates are based
upon the annual invoice
“%%; provided by the System,
%’ and additional information
provided by ERS and
PFRS.

Retirement System
Liabilities, Deferred
Outflows and Deferred
Inflows of Resources

Management esti
long-term regiyem
system lighf

Management’s process to
estimate postemployment
benefit liability, deferred
inflows and deferred
outflows appears
reasonable.

Management's process to
estimate retirement system
liabilities, deferred outflows
and deferred inflows of
resources related to ERS
and PFRS appears
reasonable.




City of Batavia
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Year Ended March 31, 2021

Number Date Name Account No Debit Credit
AJE #1 3/31/2021 Due to other governments AB31 GFO1 (10,505)
AJE#1 3/31/2021 Indus Develop Agency, Pers Serv AB4601 GFO01 10,505

To record a liability related to the unexpended portion of the Zombie grant that was received

in prior years, and will be returned to the granting agency.

10,505 {10,505)




Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The GASB has issued several statements not yet implemented by the City. The City’s management has not yet
determined the effect these Statements will have on the City’s financial statements. However, the City plans to
implement all standards by the required dates. The Statements which might impact the City are as follows:

Summary of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases

This Statement was issued in June 2017 and will be effective for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending March
31, 2023. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.

This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain
lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for
lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.
Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and
a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflgyw of resources, thereby enhancing the

;' ance and comparablhty of mformatlon about
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred

~—

capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reportln
before the end of a construction period. a5

paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No._ 62, &h{oro[”’ of Account/ng and Financial Repomng Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989 arRAl CPA Pronouncements which are superseded by thls Statement. Th|s

cost of a capital asset reported ":'_z;; .411_1;’ s-type activity or enterprise fund.

This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an
expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.

The requirements of GASB Statement No. 89 are effective for financial periods beginning after December 15, 2021.
Earlier application is encouraged.




Recently Issued Accounting Standards (Continued)

Summary of GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations

This Statement issued in May 2019 will be effective for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending March 31, 2023.
The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by
issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives
by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing standards for accounting and financial
reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.

The requirements of GASB Statement No. 91 are effective for financial periods beginning after December 15, 2021.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Summary of Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

This Statement issued in May 2021 will be effective for the City begmnlngwrh its fiscal year ending March 31, 2024.
This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financialgiéporting for subscription-based mformatuon
technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (govej This Statement (1) defines a SBITA, (2)
establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscriptio
subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria f
implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note di
standards for SBITAs are based on the standards establish

ures Aggardmg a¥8BITA. To the extent relevant the
2diin Statément No. 87, Leases, as amended.

A SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys co%trol of theglight to use another party's (a SBITA vendor's)
information technology (IT) software, alone or in compir: ith tahgi

specified in the contract for a period of time in an &
ellable right to use the underlying IT assets. The

subscription term also mcIudes penods coygredyh, 3plion to extend (if it is reasonably certain that the government

vendor will not exercise that option).

The requirements of GASB Stat nent h re effective for financial periods beginning after June 15, 2022. Earlier
application is encouraged. £ @ %
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Communication of Other Matters

To the President and Members of the City Council
City of Batavia
Batavia, New York 14020

This letter includes comments and suggestions with respect to a matter that came to our attention in connection with
our audit of the financial statements of the City of Batavia, New York (the City) as of and for the year ended March 31,
2021. These items are offered as constructive suggestion to be con3|der dipart of the ongoing process of modifying
and improving the City’s practices and procedures. 4

OTHER MATTERS

Actuarial Valuation

Observation Bl

During our audit we noted that the workers' compensation plagyhas not had an actuarial valuation of the claim
reserves and incurred but not reported claims liabilit{gstof @Without an actuarial valuation, the City is unable
to estlmate |ts I|ab|I|ty for incurred but not reported potentlal ultimate Ilablllty for claims mcurred

We recommend the City consider con j t o
Such a valuation will provide the City with"gijJe stlmate of their ultimate claim I|ab|||ty for both current claims and claims
that have occurred but have .°” {eporiegh In addition, a more accurate estimate of the City’s liability in this area

Observation LY
During the audit we performed an asessment of the City’s IT General Computer Controls (GCC) environment as it
pertains to the processes and procedures for conducting transactions and producing the financial statements for the
City. Our objectives included gaining an understanding of the information systems used in the course of business,
identifying the general computer controls surrounding those information systems, assessing the sufficiency of those
controls through inquiry and other procedures that we felt were necessary based on our coordinated approach, and
identifying any control deficiencies either in design or operation that can be considered in the performance of other
substantive procedures as part of the audit of the City’s financial statements. As part of our assessment, we noted
the City has inadequately designed controls impacting six of the nine key objectives, and five control deficiencies that
were either not deigned effectively or implemented exceptions that, in aggregate, support a moderately effective IT
control environment. We have discussed these further in the Memo of IT Control Understanding provided to City
Management.

Recommendation
We recommend that the City evaluate the individual recommendations for each objective noted within the Memo of IT
Control Understanding and consider implementing within City operations.




This letter is intended solely for the information and use of management and members of the City Council and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. We appreciate serving the City
and would be happy to assist you in addressing and implementing the suggestions in this letter.

Batavia, New York
August XX, 2021

B FreedMaxickess ec.
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City of Batavia

Memorandum

To: Audit Advisory Committee

From: Rachael J. Tabelski, City Manager
Date: August 25, 2021

Subject: FY20/21 Draft Financial Statements

Below is a draft recommendation for the allocation of unassigned fund balance to be transferred to restricted
reserve fund balances. After FY 20/21 the City is in a good position to increase the percentage of unassigned
fund balance, via the Fund Balance Policy, to 15% of current year General Fund expenses. This leaves
approximately $2,527,600 in unassigned fund balance.
e $711,000 in General Fund fund balance will be allocated to reserve funds as outlined below for future
expenses highlighted in the City’s approved Capital Plan.
* $50,000 in Worker’s Compensation Fund fund balance will be allocated to Worker’s Compensation
Fund reserves.

While the City has been diligently building reserve funds over the past several years, the City’s capital
planning outlines multiple capital expenditures over the next 2-5 years, such as public works equipment,
sidewalk replacements and multiple facility improvements. As a result, I anticipate that the City’s reserve
fund balances will decrease following these expenditures. This will occur as part of the City’s financial
planning and demonstrates the City’s ability to plan and manage large capital expenditures without negatively
affecting the City’s financial position or tax rate.

Below are the recommendations for reserve fund allocations.

Police Reserve (850,000)- The City is working to continue to replace patrol and detective vehicles on an
annual basis based on a fleet replacement schedule. Currently, there is a need to replace two to three vehicles
per year to keep up with the replacement schedule. By allocating $50,000 to the police reserve, at least two
vehicles will be able to be replaced next year. Currently the oldest patrol vehicle we have is a 2015 and the
oldest detective car is a 2009.

This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer. If you wish to file a Civil Rights program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program
Discrimination Complaint Form, found online at http://www.ascr.nsda.gov/complaint filing_cust.html, or at any USDA office, or call (866) 632-9992 to request the
form. You may also write a letter containing all of the information requested in the form. Send your completed complaint form or letter to us by mail at U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Director, Office of Adjudication, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, by fax (202) 690-7442 or email at

program.intake@usda.gov

TDD 800-662-
1220
Office of the City Manager Phone: 585-345-6330
One Batavia City Centre Fax: 585-343-8182

Batavia, New York 14020 - www.batavianewyork.com




City of Batavia

DPW Equipment Reserve ($100,000) — Since the development of the Equipment Replacement Plan (ERP) in
2011, the City has replaced over 20 pieces of public works equipment, valued at over $3 million. While the
City has made significant strides in improving the fleet, some of the fleet remains in poor shape, is very old,
and fully depreciated. Over the past five years the City has been able to replace a significant amount of
equipment by utilizing reserve funds to absorb the majority of the cost and not negatively impact the tax rate.
The ERP outlines replacing three single axel dump trucks with plows, six sedans, four 4x4 pickups with
plows, and a one-ton dump truck by the end of 2025. About $1.38 million is needed to replace this
equipment. By allocating $100,000, the reserve fund will have a new balance of $437,225. Continuing to
replenish reserve funds allows the City to make these needed investments on a regular basis.

Facilities Reserves (8136,000)- As with any building, regular maintenance and capital improvements are
necessary in order to preserve the functionality of the building and avoid significant or possible catastrophic
repairs or improvements due to neglect. Multiple proposed projects will benefit from a healthy facility
reserve fund including some work for the new police station, the $1 million dollar facility projects at the fire
department and BOM, City Centre, and other facility projects in the future. Within the past year the City has
had to make emergency repairs to one HVAC unit at City Hall and replace another. In addition, a roof
replacement is scheduled at the current police station, and we are working to finish construction on the City
Centre Concourse Roof Phase II. Consistent improvements to City facilities will be ongoing making reserve
funds important and necessary to absorb emergency and/or planned improvements in the future.

Compensated 4bsences (875,000)- Currently the City’s compensated absences liability is $1.94 million (pg.
53 of the Financial Statements) with $194,828 due within one year. However, based on what we know today,
we have three pending retirements, that will affect the General Fund by $99,331. Accordingly, the City
utilizes this reserve to fund these one-time payouts and works to maintain no affect the City’s bottom-line
for the year.

Parking Lot (§100,000)- the City maintains multiple parking and sports surfaces throughout the City and has
a parking lot plan to address payment for the improvements of lots and surfaces overtime. The plan shows
that current parking lots scheduled to be repaved by 2025 include Williams Street, the Court Street Plaza,
and Bureau of Maintenance Parking lot. Funding this reserve will help to advance these projects in future
years.

This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer. If you wish to file a Civil Rights program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program
Discrimination Complaint Form, found online at hitp://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint filing_cust.html, or at any USDA office, or call (866) 632-9992 to request the
form. You may also write a letter containing all of the information requested in the form. Send your completed complaint form or letter to us by mail at U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Director, Office of Adjudication, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, by fax (202) 690-7442 or email at

program.intake@usda.gov

TDD 800-662-
1220
Office of the City Manager Phone:, 585-345-6330
One Batavia City Centre Fax: 585-343-8182

Batavia, New York 14020 www.batavianewyork.com




City of Batavia

Health Care Fund Reserve (8250,000) — Continuing to fund the health insurance reserve is critical in order
to be able to maintain fund balance in the General Fund. In the last two years, the City has had several high
value claims and had to fund the Health Insurance Fund at a larger than anticipated amounts. By adding the
$250,000 to the Health Care Fund reserves, the City will be building back funds spent over the last two years.
Establishing safe financial resources for any unexpected health insurance expenses in the future is critical in
maintaining a stable tax rate. As of March 31, 2021 the Health Care Fund had $10,155.47 in restricted
reserves and $13,863.08 in assigned fund balance.

Workers Compensation Fund Reserve ($50,000) — Moving $50,000 of Worker’s Compensation assigned
fund balance to Worker’s Compensation restricted fund balance is recommended. As of March 31, 2021 the
Workers Compensation Fund had $580,424.34 of restricted reserves and $485,111.13 in assigned fund
balance. Continuing to reach toward $1 million in Workers Compensation Fund restricted reserve is an
ongoing goal of myself and the audit committee.

Recommendation

Funding reserves now for future liabilities, equipment, and infrastructure/facility improvements has been,
and will continue to be, critical in avoiding larger tax burdens in future years. Planning for these
improvements/liabilities is a major priority in the City’s work plan. Updating capital improvement plans and
identifying revenue streams to fund these plans are essential to maintaining a safe financial position for the
City.

The recommended appropriations for reserve fund balance funding is consistent with the City’s adopted
capital plans and financial policies, including the City’s fund balance policy.

This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer. If you wish to file a Civil Rights program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program
Discrimination Complaint Form, found online at http:/www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint filing cust.htm), or at any USDA office, or call (866) 632-9992 to request the
form. You may also write a letter containing all of the information requested in the form. Send your completed complaint form or letter to us by mail at U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Director, Office of Adjudication, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, by fax (202) 690-7442 or email at

program.intake@usda.gov

TDD 800-662-
1220
Office of the City Manager Phone: 585-345-6330
One Batavia City Centre Fax: 585-343-8182

Batavia, New York 14020 www.batavianewyork.com




#-2021
A RESOLUTION TRANSFERRING FUNDS FROM ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE TO
VARIOUS RESERVE FUNDS

Motion of Councilperson

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Municipal Law 6-¢c and 6-j the City of Batavia has
established various reserve funds; and

WHEREAS, the City of Batavia, for the fiscal year endin . arch 31, 2021, has assigned

General Fund balance for funding various reserves; and

Yino their equipment
0 s
{%cle replacement

L

schedules; and

P
%,

.

- o
-
WHEREAS, the City is desirous to replace V///Z/ es afid quipment in each department
A

based on replacement schedules; and

"
WHEREAS, the City has multi ,}/////’////'lity projects, i@mcture and building projects
that need to be addressed in the future; and”. i 0

_
Wy

-

WHEREAS, the City wishes to contlr@ey fund'paz) % fot improvements; and

\\\\\\\
\Q\\\

"

0

9
7

\)

7

an

0

WHEREAS, /}////%ity////é/v@%reserve fund% for compensated absences, health care, and
worker’s compensatjéty _ 7

NOW, THEREFO //i/?// 5 ///// ///%}/%% , that the City Council of the City of Batavia

/v’/.// %?%%%(sist /7///// /Strategic Plan, the following amounts into the

188477

enctgl/Fund’s assigned fund balance:
%

does hereby/ttans
followingzreserve e
7 % / )
///////// Police qui/%//// tRes//////////e// $ 50,000
//////// PW Equipment Resétve $100,000
/éi/%nty Reser;v///é $136,000
P%%%?%’Lot Rﬁ/ serve $100,000
Com %/s% Absence Reserve $ 75,000
Health // fe Reserve $250,000

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Batavia does hereby
transfer the following amount from Workers Compensation assigned fund balance into the
following reserves:

Worker’s Compensation Reserve $ 50,000

Seconded by Councilperson
and on roll call




#-2021
A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE MODIFIED AND RESTATED
SALES TAX ALLOCATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BATAVIA
AND COUNTY OF GENESEE

Motion of Councilperson

WHEREAS, the City of Batavia and the County of Genesee en fe ed into a “Amended
and Restated Sales Tax Allocation Agreement between the County off g{/f”%ee and the City of
Batavia” (hereinafter “Amended and Restated Agreement), dated ober 29, 2019, and

///////////,
hlS An///// d and Restated
Agreement to add provisions to allow sales tax allocatio »Zﬁ%{h@towns a{'@égf/}]lages located
outside of the City Batavia, and “ ////

\

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions pe# I/%//g to the ///y of Batavia W%//«é{/nain the
% A o ,

. . . e, 7 .
same, and thereby, the City of Batavia has no objectlor//%/ o thepropased modifications, and
/////%///

WHEREAS, the parties hereto v@?}h/ to enter into a n odified Agreement pursuant to

Subdivision (c) of Section 1262 of the Ta %//’“ ,0f the State of 4 7, York, a copy of which is
attached hereto, for a term that shall end o %/{/c%g{f}%/@r 31, 2059, w/f/ Wis the date, which the
current Amended and Restated Agreement te/f/’;gninatg//s(//////// /
" \ // ////////////
NOW, THEREF/ R %IT RESOL?,"/ .D, that thg City Council President of the City
A 2 o

id directed to exgcute on behalf of the City the “Modified

2%, ,
,./» es Tax Bllocation Agregment Between the County of Genesee and the
Y g y
; - 7, .. s
City of Batavia”, for a te 1) ending on December 31 7059.

LV
-
NN

N\

AW

Second Councilpgrgon //// )
and }/)/////l call ////%// ////////
@ v




MODIFIED AMENDED AND RESTATED SALES TAX ALLOCATION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF GENESEE AND THE CITY OF BATAVIA

THIS MODIFIED AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Modified Agreement”)
made the day of , 2021 by and between the County of Genesee, a municipal
corporation of the State of New York, with offices located at the Old Courthouse, 7 Main Street, Batavia,
New York, 14020 (hereinafter “County”), and the City of Batavia, a municipal corporation of the State of
New York with offices located at One Batavia City Centre, Batavia, New York 14020 (hereinafter “City”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County and the City (hereinafter jointly “Parties”) entered into an “Amended and
Restated Sales Tax Allocation Agreement Between the County of Genesee and the City of Batavia”
(hereinafter “Amended and Restated Agreement”), dated October 29, 2019, which was approved on
December 23, 2019, by the Department of Audit and Control in the Office of the New York State
Comptroller, and

WHEREAS, the Parties mutually intend to modify the Amended and Restated Agreement to add
allocations of sales tax revenue to the Towns and Villages located within the County, however, with no
changes to the rights, terms and conditions of the Amended and Restated Agreement relating to the
City, and

WHEREAS, the modifications herein are being made pursuant to the process set forth in the “EIGHTH”
Paragraph of the Amended and Restated Agreement, and

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto wish to enter into this Modified Agreement pursuant to subdivision (c) of
Section 1262 of the Tax Law of the State of New York, in order to continue to provide for sales tax
allocations as set forth herein, and as set forth in the unmodified provisions of the Amended and
Restated Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agfeements contained herein, it is
agreed as follows:

1. Subparagraph (A) of the “THIRD” Paragraph of the Amended and Restated Agreement is hereby
repealed in its entirety to add a new Subparagraph (A), to read as follows:
A. All of the net collections of all sales tax received by the County that are not allocated to the
City of Batavia or to the area of the County outside the City, as set forth below, shall be set
aside for County purposes and shall be available for any allowable County uses.
2. Anew Subparagraph “THIRD” (F) shail be added to the Amended and Restated Agreement, to read
as follows;
F.  Atotal finite amount of the net collections of all sales tax received by the County, as set
forth in Subparagraphs G and H below, shall be paid to each of the Towns within the
County in proportion to its share of the full taxable value of real property in such Towns.
Where a Village has elected to be paid directly pursuant to Section 1262 (c) of the Tax Law,
said Village shall be paid that amount proportionate to its share of the total full value of
taxable real property in the Town.




3. A new Subparagraph “THIRD” (G) shall be added to the Amended and Restated Agreement, to read
as follows;
G. For the period of July 1, 2021, through December 31, 2021, the total sum to be paid as per
Subparagraph (F) above, shall be Five Million dollars ($5,000,000).

4. A new Subparagraph “THIRD” (H) shall be added to the Amended and Restated Agreement, to read
as follows;

H. During the calendar year of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022, and every calendar
year thereafter until the Amended and Restated Agreement terminates, the total sum to be
paid annually as per Subparagraph (F) above, shall be Ten Million dollars ($10,000,000);
provided further that in the event that the balance remaining after the required annual
payments have been made to the City pursuant to Subparagraphs (B-D) is less than $20
million, the total amount to be paid per Subparagraph (F) above, shall be fifty percent (50%)
of such balance.

5. All other terms and conditions of the said Amended and Restated Agreement that are not specifically
modified herein, shall remain in full force and effect to continue to be binding upon the Parties.

6. This Modified Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which may be deemed as an
original, and all of which taken together, shall constitute one Modified Agreement binding upon
both Parties.

7. This Modified Agreement is subject to the approval of the State Comptroller of the State of New York
as set forth in section 1262(c) of the Tax Law.

8. Notwithstanding the dates of full execution and/or approval by the State Comptroller’s Office, this
Modified Agreement shall be effective retroactively to July 1, 2021, and the payments to the Towns
and Villages shall be calculated retroactively to the effective date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have signed this Modified Agreement the day and year first written
above.

CITY OF BATAVIA COUNTY OF GENESEE

By: By: WW
Eugene Jankowski, Jr. Rochelle M. Stein
President, City Council Chair, County Legislature




RESOLUTION NO. 335 MODIFIED AMENDED AND RESTATED SALES
TAX AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF
GENESEE AND CITY OF BATAVIA - APPROVAL
OF

Legislator Maha offered the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the County of Genesee and the City of Batavia entered into a “Amended
and Restated Sales Tax Allocation Agreement between the County of Genesee and the
City of Batavia” (hereinafter “Amended and Restated Agreement), dated October 29,
2019, and

WHEREAS, the County of Genesee desires to modify this Amended and Restated
Agreement to add provisions to allow sales tax allocations to the towns and villages
located outside of the City Batavia, and

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions pertaining to the City of Batavia will remain the
same, and thereby, the City of Batavia has no objections to the proposed modifications,
and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to enter into a new Modified Agreement pursuant to
subdivision (c) of Section 1262 of the Tax Law of the State of New York, for a term that
shall end on December 31, 2059, which is the date which the current Amended and
Restated Agreement terminates. Now, therefore, Be it

RESOLVED, That the Chair of the Genesee County Legislature is hereby authorized and
directed to execute on behalf of the County a proposed “Modified Amended and Restated
Sales Tax Allocation Agreement Between the County of Genesee and the City of
Batavia”, for a term ending on December 31, 2059, which includes authorization to
allocate ten (10) million dollars of the annual net collections of all sales tax received by -
the County to be divided among the Genesee County Townsand Villages as set forth

therein.

Legislator Torrey seconded the resolution which was adopted by 298 votes, Clattenburg
(28) absent.

State of New York

County of Genesee

T hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct transcript of a resolution duly
adopted by the Genesee County Legislature on the 25 day of August 2021.

Dated, Batavia, New York
August 26, 2021

b Fa sl

Clerk of the Genesee County Legislature




RESOLUTION NO. 335 MODIFIED AMENDED AND RESTATED SALES
TAX AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF
GENESEE AND CITY OF BATAVIA - APPROVAL
OF

Legislator Maha offered the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the County of Genesee and the City of Batavia entered into a “Amended
and Restated Sales Tax Allocation Agreement between the County of Genesee and the
City of Batavia” (hereinafter “Amended and Restated Agreement), dated October 29,
2019, and

WHEREAS, the County of Genesee desires to modify this Amended and Restated
Agreement to add provisions to allow sales tax allocations to the towns and villages
located outside of the City Batavia, and

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions pertaining to the City of Batavia will remain the
same, and thereby, the City of Batavia has no objections to the proposed modifications,
and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to enter into a new Modified Agreement pursuant to
subdivision (c) of Section 1262 of the Tax Law of the State of New York, for a term that
shall end on December 31, 2059, which is the date which the current Amended and
Restated Agreement terminates. Now, therefore, Be it

RESOLVED, That the Chair of the Genesee County Legislature is hereby authorized and
directed to execute on behalf of the County a proposed “Modified Amended and Restated
Sales Tax Allocation Agreement Between the County of Genesee and the City of
Batavia”, for a term ending on December 31, 2059, which includes authorization to
allocate ten (10) million dollars of the annual net collections of all sales tax received by
the County to be divided among the Genesee County Towns and Villages as set forth
therein.

Legislator Torrey seconded the resolution which was adopted by 298 votes, Clattenburg
(28) absent.

State of New York
County of Genesee
Lhereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct transcript of a resolution duly
adopted by the Genesee County Legislature on the 25 day of August 2021.
Dated, Batavia, New York
Aﬁuﬂ 26,2021
Z/?u/ét % 3%4

Clerk of the Genesee County Legislature




City of Batavia

Memorandum

- To: Rachael Tabelski, City Manager

From: Shawn Heubusch, Police Chie%{/

Date: August 17, 2021
Subject:  Additional Street Light on Highland Park

It has come to the Department’s attention on numerous occasions that there is an area on Highland
Park where the street lights currently in place are not sufficient for public safety.

I have consulted with the Director of Public Works and Superintendent of Water and Wastewater on
how to properly address this situation. We have determined that having National Grid add a light
fixture to an existing pole with bring the needed lighting to the area.

Attached is a sheet outlining the ’Cif}}’s cosf ona yeariy basis td install different fixtures. I am
recommending that we install a 150-watt LED fixture for less than $90 per year in electricity cost. This
will greatly enhance lighting and public safety in the area.

Please advise if you have any questions.

Thank you.

Phone: 585-345-6350

Fax: 585-344-1878

Records: 585-345-6303
Detective Bureau: 585-345-6370
www.batavianewyork.com

Police Department
10 Main Street
Batavia, New York 14020




Leaf 31 and 31.1 - PSC 214 Serv Classification No. 2 — Effective April 1, 2021

Table 4.1 — LED Luminaire Charge (Standard)

Annual Light Source/Luminaire Charge, per unit (§)

Luminaire e/Light Source

LED Luminaire Reference

A | B C D E | E
LED
Arbordale 0000 e eee- 78.49 64.89 84.06 109.14
Camiage ™ ~e-e- 67.81 6323 ceemm emeen e --
Floodlight-LED === ;emee ememe ceeen 81.73 88.78
Highland Patk ~ aeeen 96.27 103.64 = seeem emeee eeeee
Oxford = eeeee 76.09 93.69  eeeme emmee e
Princeton e 83.11 84.63  aeeee emooe eeew
| Roadway-LED v 84.48 8928 11112 --- 120.12
Roadway-LED (24HR) ----- 17748 187.56 23340  ~eeem 252.36
Westminster = eemem eeme eeeen 252,57 331.74  368.52
Westminster Pedestrian ----- 189.58  247.69 = wrems eeeee e

NOTE: LED Luminaire Reference designations A, G, and H are reserved for future use.

New street light installations will be LED-only. Replacements of failed existing Company-owned lnminaires will
be LED-only on a customer “opt-in” basis. Customers who opt-into the LED-only replacement program must
notify the Company in writing of their intent to participate. Upon receipt of a customer’s written notification of
intent, the Company will coordinate with the customer to identify the available LED luminaires that will be used to

replace failed HID Inminaires. The HID-LED Conversion Matrix provided in Table 4.2 provides a guide for
customers seeking to understand the corresponding illumination output of available LEDs.

Table 4.2 — Light Source/Luminaire LED Conversions

HID-LED Conversion Matrix

\V/

Luminaire/Light Source Type HID (W) - LED Conversion

HID LED | 70 100 150 175 250 400 1000!
Aspen Grove Highland Park B B C C
Central Park Highland Park B B C C
Coach Carriage B B C C
Contemporary Highland Park B B C C
Delaware Park Westminster D D E F
Delaware Park Ped Westminster Pedestrian B B C C
Edgewater Princeton B B C C
Edison Oxford B B C C
Floodlight Floodlight-LED E E F F(x2)
Franklin Square Highland Park B B C C
Little Falls - Post Top Oxford B B C C
Little Falls - Teardro; Westminster Pedestrian B B C C

[ Roadway Roadway-LED B B C B D F Fx2) |
Shoebox Arbordale C C D D E F
Traditional Carriage B B C Cc
Washington Highland Park B C
B B C C

Williamsville Oxford




#-2021
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING INSTALLATION OF STREET LIGHT ON
HIGHLAND PARK

Motion of Councilmember

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to improve lighting on Highland Park and it has been
determined that the installation of an additional light is needed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Ci/t . ////uncil Sf the City of Batavia
hereby authorizes and directs National Grid to install a 150/'»/tt¢, 7D fixture on a pole to be

determined on Highland Park. W//////

. /

%, _
Seconded by Councilmemb N ////////////
econdae Yy councumemper / ////////

and on roll call
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